
 
 
 
 
 
 Please ask for: 

 Linda Coote 
 Direct dial: 

 (023) 9254 5340 
 Fax: 
 (023) 9254 5587 
 E-mail: 

 linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
  

13 July 2021 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Regulatory Board 
DATE: 21 July 2021 

TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 
 
 
 
 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
 

The Mayor (Councillor Hook (ex-Officio) and Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio)) 
Councillor Mrs Hook (Chairman) 
Councillor Casey (Vice-Chair) 

 
 

Councillor Mrs Batty 
Councillor Carter 
Councillor Earle 
Councillor Foster-Reed 
Councillor Hammond 
 

Councillor Mrs Jones 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Mrs Morgan 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Westerby 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 
 



Regulatory Board 
21 July 2021 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

   

1.   APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE   

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 JUNE 2021   

4.   DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 19th July 2021 The total 
time for deputations in favour and against shall not exceed 10 
minutes) 
 

 

5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such questions (s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon 19 
July 2021) 
 

 

6.   FAREHAM LOCAL PLAN 2037: REVISED PUBLICATION PLAN 
(REGULATION 19) 

 

 To consider and approve a response to the Fareham Local Plan 
2037: Revised Publication Plan (Regulation 19) (FLP2037) 
consultation which has been produced by Fareham Borough Council 
(FBC). 
 

 

7.   REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER   

 Schedule of planning applications with recommendations. Grey 
sheets. 
 

 

8.   ANY OTHER ITEMS   



Regulatory Board 
21 July 2021 

 
 

 



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 9 JUNE 2021 

 
 
Councillor Burgess (Substituting for Mrs Jones) 
 
Councillors Mrs Batty, Carter, Casey, Earle, Foster-Reed, Mrs Furlong (Substituting for 
Murphy), Mrs Hook, Miss Kelly, Mrs Morgan, Pepper (Substituting for Hammond) and 
Westerby 
 
 
54. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Hammond, who was 
substituted by Councillor Pepper, from Councillor Mrs Jones who was substituted by 
Councillor Burgess and from Councillor Murphy who was substututed by Councillor Mrs 
Furlong. 
 
55. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Casey be elected as Vice-Chairman for the Municipal Year 
2021-22. 
 
56. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Mrs Westerby declared a personal interest in item 3 of the Report of the 
Development Manager. 
 
57. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14TH APRIL 2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 14th April 2021 be signed as a 
true and correct record.  
 
58. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
Deputations were received on agenda item 7 
 
19/00415/FULL – Site of the former Royal Sailors Rest  
20/00292/FULL _-Brockhurst Gate 
20/00404/FULL – 55 Elson Road 
 
 
59. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
60. REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER  
 

The Development Manger submitted a report on applications received for planning approval 
setting out the recommendations. 

 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

2 

RESOLVED:  That a decision be taken on each application for planning permission as 
detailed below: 
 
19/00415/FULL - ERECTION OF 8 NO. THREE BEDROOM HOUSES AND 1 NO. TWO 
BEDROOM HOUSE WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, CAR PARKING AND LANDSCAPING 
(ADJACENT TO CONSERVATION AREA) (as amended by plans received 11.11.2019 
and amplified by Nitrogen Neutrality and Mitigation details received 06.07.2020, 
Addendum to the Community Resource Analysis Statement received 07.09.2020 and 
Updated Aborcultural Report received 04.11.2020) 
Site Of Former Royal Sailors Rest  Grange Lane  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 9RX  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing planning 
application 19/00415/FULL.  
 
The Board was advised there were no updates.  
 
Mr Sennit was invited to address the Board. He advised that his client had owned the site 
since 2014 and that the building formerly sited there had been demolished some 6/7 
previously.  
 
He advised the Board that the previous application submitted for the site been refused and 
an appeal against that decision was lost as a result of the loss of community facility on the 
site.  

 
He advised that the revised application would be a positive enhancement to the area and 
that significant hard work had been undertaken to address the community facility issue and 
as a result it had been agreed that a financial contribution would be made to support other 
existing facilities in the area.  
 
This financial contribution would enhance the area for the local community and the 
development of the site would replace a plot that had been vacant for a number of years. 
There was no objection to the loss of an existing facility as there was no existing facility 
present.  
 
A Member advised the Board that they had previously lived close to the site and that the site 
was designated in the Local Plan as leisure facilities use and as a result felt that planning 
permission should not be granted if leisure facilities were not provided.  
 
They felt that there was a shortage of community facilities in the area and with funds the site 
would be ideal to support an indoor skate park.  
 
Members reflected that it was interesting that the application was for 9 properties as to add 
an additional property would require a provision of affordable housing.  
 
It was felt that the financial contribution was a token contribution and that the site was worth 
more of a contribution to the community than being offered. They also disagreed that there 
was no community interest in the site.  
 
Mr Sennit advised that a marketing exercise had been undertaken by specialists for potential 
uses as skate park and for other uses, but it had been speculated that the site was not big 
enough to include an indoor skate park.  



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

3 

 
A Member expressed concern that there were few sites suitable for facilities for young people 
and there was a desperate need for facilities in the Borough. They advised that a local 
church group had been outbid on the site by the applicants but that had they been successful 
the site would have been retained for community use.  
 
They felt that the financial contribution was a get out to providing a community facility.  
 
A Member advised the Board that in 2019 a local group had made a bid for the community 
facility on site that would have been highly beneficial and that therefore two bids for 
community use on the site had been made and rejected. As a result they found it hard to 
accept that there was no interest or desire for community facilities on site.  
 
The Member advised that sites for skate parks could be flexible and that that a request had 
been made to the planning department for suitable land for development and expressed 
concern that the research undertaken had not been thorough enough.  
 
Mr Sennit advised the Board that he could not comment on the bid to purchase the site but 
advised that the bid for community use in 2019 had been to rent a community facility as 
opposed to purchasing it and the rent that was offered was not enough to make the building 
of such a facility commercially viable.  
 
Members felt that too greater value was being placed on the bricks and mortar of such a 
facility rather than the community value.  
 
Mr Sennit confirmed that the figure agreed had been negotiated with planning officers and 
reiterated that the bid made in 2019 did not offer finance to support the build or cover rental 
of a facility.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the applicant had paid 
£240,000 for the site in 2014 and it was confirmed at the time of purchase there had been no 
building on the site.  
 
Mr Sennit confirmed that the advert for community use had been undertaken through 
Holloway, Illife and Mitchell in newspapers, online on the internet and in a commercial 
property portal and that there had also been a sign on site.  
 
Members expressed disappointment that the site had not been advertised to Councillors as 
they would have had a greater reach of advertisement opportunities in the heart of the 
community and that it had not been advertised on social media.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, Mr Sennit confirmed that the outstanding charge on the 
site due to the MOD was required to be paid once planning permission for the site had been 
granted.  
 
A Member questioned why the proposal was for two and three bedroom properties as there 
seemed to be a demand for larger 4 and 5 bedroomed properties and expressed concern 
that the properties would be made bigger with retrospective planning consent sought. Mr 
Sennit advised that discussions had been undertaken with planning officers and that any 
change to the proposals would require planning consent. He confirmed that the proposal was 



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

4 

the most cost effective and suitable for the site and met the need for 2 and 3 bedroom 
properties in the Borough which were most popular and required. 

 
In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the contribution of £15,000 
was deemed to be equal or greater in value than what had been on the site previously.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, Planning Officers confirmed that there was a shortage of 
2 and 3 bedroom properties in the Borough and that as a result the proposal met the local 
plan requirements.  
 
The Development Manager advised the Board that each application was considered on its 
own merits and that the figure offered was deemed to be acceptable for this proposal.  
 
The previous application for the site had been refused and the subsequent appeal lost as 
adequate provision had not been made for the loss of community use, however this 
application acceptably met the requirements.  
 
The Board was advise that the site had been vacant for 10 years and had no building on it for 
7 and that despite advertisement and marketing there had been low interest and offers 
received for the site.  
 
As this indicated a low need for provision on the site it was therefore justifiable to accept a 
financial contribution as an alternative. Whilst it was accepted that £15,000 was not a 
considerable amount, if planning permission was granted the Council could use the funds to 
support existing community facilities in the area local to the site.  
 
Members expressed concern that activities such as youth discos had stopped and 
questioned whether the neighbouring Crossley Community Centre was available for non-
military use.  
 
The Board was advised that at the time of the initial application the Crossley was not open to 
non-military Members; however it was now actively encouraged.  
 
The Board was advised that although there may have been less requirement for community 
use over the duration of the pandemic, the marketing exercise for the use had been 
undertaken prior to the pandemic.  
 
Members debated the proposal, some felt that it was an appropriate use of the site as it had 
not been used for 10 years, and accepted that a community use was not achievable this 
time.  
 
Members accepted that the outstanding charge would be paid if planning permission was 
granted and also that the previous building had be burnt down creating an eyesore. 
 
Members expressed concern that they felt not enough effort had been made in marketing the 
site to community groups, or sports and leisure facilities but accepted there was a community 
facility adjacent to the site.  

 



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

5 

RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to the conditions in the report of the 

Development Manager.    

 

He advised the Board that he was available to answer any questions and address any 

concerns and that they had worked hard to protect Fort Brockhurst.  

 

Mr Harris advised the Board that the application was for a warehouse retail unit that was not 

suitable for the Town Centre and that it would sell bulky goods. As a result there would be no 

significant impact on the Town Centre. There would also be no additional café, or restaurant 

on the site.  

 

The Unit would be additional and attached to the existing row of units and would be 

acceptable from a heritage and design perspective. The terrace in front of the retail 

development and in front of Fort Brockhurst would remain free from development and the 

proposal would cause no harm to the area.  

 

The design mirrored the existing units on site and the proposed location would ensure wildlife 

remained protected and had the support of Historic England. 

 

He advised the Board that the proposal would benefit the site as it would utilise land that was 

vacant with no wider value and that the proposal would be accompanied by 2 electric vehicle 

charging points, short and long stay cycle parking and an additional 16 parking spaces. It was 

also well connected to the public transport network.  

 

Six trees that had not established on site would be removed to allow the development, but 

they would be replaced by eight native trees.  

 

The proposal would create 30 FTE jobs in retail, in addition to the jobs created by the 

construction; there would also be a contribution to the Council in the form of business rates.  

 

20/00292/FULL - ERECTION OF EXTENSION TO FORM A RETAIL UNIT (USE CLASS 

E(a)), CAR PARKING AND ASSOCIATED WORKS (as amended by plans received 

09.02.21, and additional information received 04.02.21 and 19.03.21 and amplified by 

plan received 19.05.21) 

 

 Brockhurst Gate  Cotsworth Road  Gosport  Hampshire     

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing planning 

application 20/00292/FULL.  

 

There were no updates.  

 

Mr Harris was invited to address the Board.  



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

6 

The development had contributed Community Infrastructure Levy money to the Council that 

had benefited the town. Mr Harris concluded by advising he welcomed the Planning Officer’s 

recommendation and advised that highway markings would be completed as part of the work 

proposed and that bench seats would be installed.  

 

A Member questioned what evidence there was of any claim that the proposal and the site 

benefited the Town in terms of jobs and trade as they were sceptical this was the case. The 

Planning Officer advised that this was an opinion rather than evidential.  

 

Members acknowledge that the issues identified in the last application had been addressed 

but expressed concern that there would be an increased parking pressure. It was also 

acknowledged that McDonalds caused a number of the parking issues and had been 

contacted over the matter. 

 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that extra parking spaces were 
being made available as a result of the proposal and that it would also include electric car 
charging points and extra cycle parking spaces. In addition in was located in close proximity to 
the extended BRT route. It was therefore deemed acceptable as it provided options for many 
alternative journeys other than using a car.  
 
In addition the Planning Officer advised that the Electric Car Charging points were not required 
for the application but were a benefit that the applicant was offering.  
 
Members accepted that a number of the problems associated with the traffic on the site were 
getting in to it from the A32, rather than issues with the car park.  
 

    

RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to the conditions in the report of the 

Development Manager.    

   

20/00404/FULL ERECTION OF FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION TO EXISTING FIRST 

FLOOR ONE BEDROOM FLAT TO CREATE 2NO. ONE BEDROOM FLATS AND 1NO. 

TWO BEDROOM FLAT (CLASS C3), INSTALLATION OF DOOR/WINDOWS ON THE 

FRONT, SIDE ELEVATIONS, RELOCATION OF 3NO, VENTILATION UNITS AT FIRST 

FLOOR LEVEL ON EAST SIDE ELEVATION AND ACOUSTIC SURROUND, ERECTION 

OF BICYCLE STORAGE SHEDS AND REFUSE AREA AND CREATION OF 3NO. 

VEHICULAR PARKING SPACE (as amended by plans received 07.12.2020) 

55 Elson Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 4EY   

 

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing planning 

application 20/00404/FULL. 

 

There were no updates.  

 



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

7 

 Mr Broggan was asked to address the Board. He advised that the application sought 

planning permission for an extension to the rear of the top floor, above the shop to 

accommodate additional two, one bedroomed residential flats. The existing two bedroomed 

flat was occupied by the owners and one of the one bedroomed flats had already been 

leased, subject to planning permission being granted.  

 

He acknowledged that the objections to the proposal were in relation to parking concerns, 

the ventilation unit and overlooking and advised the Board that there were currently 3 

spaces on site for the existing unit.  

 

He advised the Board that the proposal included onsite parking, bicycle storage and the 

relocation of the ventilation unit in line with the consultation with Environmental Health.  

 

He advised the Board that the design, scale and mass was such that it minimised 

overlooking and advised that the window openings would present minimal impact on others. 

He advised that an additional unit had been removed from a previous proposal to address 

concerns and that the proposal adhered to the Local Plan as there was a benefit to housing 

stock from the proposal. 

 

In answer to a Member’s question, the applicant advised the Board that the van that was 

currently on site would be removed and that there were currently four spaces, and this 

would reduce to three. This would allow for a bin store.  

 

Members expressed concern that the proposal relied on street parking adjacent to the 

proposal site and that this was often full and led to people parking on double yellow lines. 

They advised that the requirement for the development was 5 spaces and that the proposal 

fell short of this.  

 

The Planning Officer advised that the proposal included 3 car parking spaces and the 

shortfall was one visitor and one resident space. However, it was considered that given the  

site’s close proximity to bus routes, the Town Centre and cycle provision, that despite the 

high demand for on-street parking locally, on-balance, the development was acceptable.   

 

Members debated their proposal and reiterated concerns about the parking provision. They 

advised that parking was a problem in the locality and this would make the situation worse. 

Members expressed concern that a survey of the local parking had taken place in the day, 

when demand was less and also expressed concern at the obstruction of light to the 

neighbouring property.  

 

 

RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to the conditions in the report of 

the Development Manager.    

 
   

 



Regulatory Board 
9 June 2021 

 

8 

21/00168/FULL ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND REPLACE 

ROOF ON REAR EXTENSION  

5 St Marks Close  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2DB      
 
Consideration was given to application 21/00168/FULL  
 
There were no updates.  
 
RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to the conditions in the report of 

the Development manager    

 
 
 
21/00122/FULL -PART TWO STOREY PART SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

38 Waterloo Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2AL  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing application 

21/00122/FULL.  

 

There were no updates.  

 

RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to the conditions in the report of 

the Development Manager.  

 
 
61. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
The Development Manager updated members on a number of planning appeals. 
 

 Park Road appeal had been dismissed and the Councils’ decision upheld 

 The appeal against the decision to refuse illuminated LED hoardings at Brockhurst 
Gate had been given a start date.  

 Notice had been received that appeals had been dismissed on two sites adjacent to 
Newgate Lane 

 An appeal against a development at Brookers Lane is to be held virtually later in the 
month. 

Further details on these appeals would be circulated in a Members Information Bulletin 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 7.10 pm 

 
 



1 
 
 

   
  
  

Board/Committee: Regulatory Board 

Date of Meeting: 21st July 2021 

Title: Fareham Local Plan 2037: Revised Publication Plan 
(Regulation 19) 

Author: Manager of Planning Policy 

Status: For Decision 

  
 PURPOSE 
 To consider and approve a response to the Fareham Local Plan 2037: 

Revised Publication Plan (Regulation 19) (FLP2037) consultation which 
has been produced by Fareham Borough Council (FBC). 

  
 RECOMMENDATION 
 That this Council makes the following representations (as expanded upon 

within sections 3-8 of this Report)  to Fareham Borough Council (FBC): 
 

 That this Council supports that land east of Newgate Lane East is 
designated within the  Strategic Gap as shown on the latest Policies 
Map; 

 That this Council supports that the land east of Newgate Lane East 
(formerly known as HA2) is no longer identified as a housing 
allocation in the FLP2037; 

 That this Council submits a holding objection relating to the East of 
Crofton Cemetery and South of Longfield Avenue allocations until 
such time that a transport assessment which includes the 
cumulative impact of development in the FLP2037 and the 
emerging Gosport Borough Local Plan 2038 (GBLP2038) concludes 
that there is no detrimental impact on the effectiveness of the road 
infrastructure serving the Gosport Peninsula including the 
Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane East.  This work would form 
part of the Statement of Common Ground between the two local 
planning authorities; 

 That this Council, whilst supporting the overall intention of Policy 
DS1: Development in the Countryside, considers that amendments 
are required for reasons set out in the Report (paragraphs 5.7-5.26). 

 That this Council objects to the detailed wording  of the following 
policies  or parts of policies as detailed in paragraphs 5.7-5.26  of 
this report: 

- Policy HP4  

- Policy HP6 

 That this Council supports the employment allocations at Daedalus 

Agenda Item 6



2 
 
 

(Policies E1, E2 and E3). 

 That this Council supports the following policies: 

- Policy E5 which protects employment sites including a number 
on the Gosport Peninsula; 

- Policy E6 on boatyards which aims to protect important marine 
sites for employment purposes;  

- Policy E7 which aims to safeguard the Solent Airport at 
Daedalus; 

- Policy TIN2 which aims to ensure development does not have 
an unacceptable impact on highway safety and the residual 
cumulative impact on the road network is not severe; 

- Policy TIN3 which safeguards land to support the delivery of the 
South East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme. 

 That Policy NE9 includes specific reference to the potential for 
green infrastructure improvements in the Fareham, Gosport, Lee-
on-the-Solent and Stubbington Strategic Gap.  

1 Background 
1.1 Fareham Borough Council is consulting on a revised Fareham Local Plan 

2037 Publication version (FLP2037)1.  This version of the Local Plan is 
often referred to as the Regulation 19 Plan.  This is the second Regulation 
19 Fareham Local Plan that has been produced as Members will recall that 
an earlier version was presented to this Board in December 2020. 

  
1.2 The Plan has needed to be updated primarily to take into account a higher 

housing requirement, as assessed using the Government’s Standard 
Method, which has resulted in the identification of additional housing sites 
which is detailed in Section 4 of this report. 

  
1.3 This is likely to be the final main consultation stage before it is submitted to 

the Secretary of State for independent examination. Consequently 
representations made at this stage will be considered by the Planning 
Inspector based on the ‘tests of soundness’. Unlike the previous 
Regulation 18 consultation, the Council will need to complete a formal 
representation proforma and indicate whether it considers that the 
FLP2037  meets a numbers of tests which are set out below:  
 

 Legally Compliant: Does the Plan meet the legal requirements for 
plan making as set out by planning laws? 

 Sound: Has the Plan been positively prepared? Is it justified, 
effective, and consistent with national policy?  

                                            
1
 A copy of the document can be viewed at the following link: 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/local_plan/RevisedPublicationLocalPlan.pdf 



3 
 
 

 Complies with the Duty to Co-operate: Has the Council engaged 
and worked effectively with neighbouring authorities and statutory 
bodies? 

  
1.4 The comments outlined in this report will be converted into a proforma and 

it is these comments that the Council will rely on at the Examination in 
Public (EiP) unless invited to make further representations by the Planning 
Inspector. It is considered appropriate to resubmit earlier representations 
even if they are the same for the avoidance of doubt. 

  
1.5 The latest FLP2037 is a consolidated Local Plan showing tracked changes 

from the 2020 version.  It contains all the relevant proposals and policies 
as well as the inclusion of a Policies Map covering the Fareham Borough 
area outside Welborne. The planned new settlement will remain covered 
by the current Local Plan Part 3: the Welborne Plan. The FLP2037 will set 
out the development strategy and policy framework for Fareham and once 
adopted will be used to guide decisions on planning applications up to 
2037. Comments are required to reach FBC by the 30th July 2021. 

  
1.6 Members will recall that in addition to the Regulation 19 Local Plan in 

December 2020 this Council has made representations to three previous 
informal consultations (often referred to as Regulation 18 consultations).  
These representations related to: 

 The Consultation Draft Fareham Local Plan (DFLP) which was 
reported to the Regulatory Board on 6th December 2017  

 The Fareham Borough Local Plan 2036: Issues and Options which 
was reported to the Regulatory Board on 25th July 2019 

 The Fareham Borough Local Plan 2036: Supplement which was 
reported to the Regulatory Board on 28th February 2020 

1.7 Members will also recall that this Council made very strong objections to a 
number of proposals within these three documents which remained 
consistent throughout the process.  The objections related primarily to 
residential development in the Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent, and 
Stubbington Strategic Gap with regard to land east of Newgate Lane East 
(known as HA2) and the potential for a larger scale Strategic Growth Area 
(SGA). Key reasons for objections included: 
 

- The proposal would physically and visually diminish the long-
established Strategic Gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-
the-Solent and Stubbington; 

- The proposals would negate the benefits being provided by the 
new improvements to Newgate Lane and the Stubbington 
Bypass with a negative impact on traffic flow and increased 
congestion to the detriment of Gosport residents and the local 
economy including accessibility to the Solent Enterprise Zone at 
Daedalus; 



4 
 
 

- The proposal would significantly harm the amenities of local 
Gosport residents with the introduction of new access points to 
existing residential areas, which due to the scale of the proposal 
would potentially lead to a significant increase of traffic on 
residential roads; 

- The proposal, as described, would be very car dependent with 
no provision for public transport.  This would increase the 
amount of trips using Newgate Lane and exacerbate existing 
congestion and air quality issues; 

- There is insufficient information on supporting infrastructure 
required including education, medical and community facilities.  

  
Report 

  
2 Introduction  
2.1 This report provides an overview of the FLP2037 with particular emphasis 

on those elements most relevant to Gosport Borough and the significant 
changes from the previous Regulation 19 version.  

  
2.2 This report is broken down into several sections to reflect the content of the 

FLP2037 with comments specifically relating to the implications for Gosport 
Borough.  These sections are: 

 Development Strategy (Section 3) 

 Housing (Section 4) 

 Strategic Gap and Countryside Policies (Section 5) 

 Employment (Section 6) 

 Transport (Section 7) 

 Other Policies (Section 8) 
  
3  Development Strategy 
3.1 The Development Strategy includes a key diagram which highlights the 

main areas of housing and employment development as well as the 
protection of the Strategic Gap and important nature conservation areas. 
Further details are shown on the Policies Map. 

  
3.2 The Development Strategy makes provision for: 

  9,556 new residential dwellings which is an increase from 8,389 
dwellings in the previous version. This increase of approximately 
1,200 dwellings is detailed in Section 4 of this report and reflects the 
Government’s Standard Method for calculating housing requirements 
for each local authority;  

 121,964m2 of new employment floorspace which is an increase from 
104,000m2 in the previous version and reflects the latest 
consideration of available sites; 

 the Strategic employment site at Daedalus (Solent Enterprise Zone) 
to deliver an additional 77,200m2 of employment floorspace over 
and above that already planned for.  This maintains the position 



5 
 
 

included in the previous 2020 version; 

 strategic opportunities in Fareham Town Centre that contribute to at 
least 961 dwellings as part of a wider regeneration strategy.  This is 
an increase from 428 dwellings in the previous version; 

 development allocations on previously developed land where 
available and on greenfield land around edges of existing urban 
areas in order to meet remaining housing and employment needs; 

 policies to manage appropriate levels of development outside of 
urban areas. 

4 Housing  
  
 Housing need and supply 
4.1 Table 1 below sets outs the housing requirement for the latest FLP2037 

and compares it with the previous version. 
 

Table 1:Fareham Local Plan 2037 Housing requirement 

 2020 version 2021 version 

Fareham annual housing 
need (based on current data) 

403 541 

Plan period 2021-2037 16 years 16 years 

Total Fareham need 6,448 8,656 

Plus unmet need 847 900 

Total Local Plan Housing 
requirement  

7,295 9,556 

 

  
4.2 The annual housing need requirement has increased from 403 dwellings 

per annum (dpa) to 541 dpa. This significant change has occurred 
because in the previous version FBC had used the Government’s 
proposed Standard Method which the Government had consulted on 
between August and October 20202.  However the Government has since 
abandoned this methodology and instead have advised local authorities to 
use the previous Standard Method which relies on basing the household 
projections on the 2014 ONS population forecasts rather than the latest 
2018 projections.  The affordability ratio component of the Standard 
Method has increased the dwelling requirement still further from the earlier 
Regulation 18 version which included a figure of 520dpa.  

  
4.3 The FLP2037 recognises that unmet need from neighbouring authorities 

can increase a local authority’s housing figure. It identifies that the 
Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) currently identifies a substantial 
unmet need of approximately 10,750 dwellings (PfSH Joint Committee 
September 2020) across the sub-region.  It also recognised that local 
authorities are at a different stage of plan-making and consequently the 
PfSH figure in most cases only takes into account existing policy compliant 

                                            
2
  ‘Changes to the Planning System’ document- This Council considered the Changes to The Planning 

System including the Standard Method at the Economic Development Board of 23
rd

 September 2020 
in which it was referred to as an interim ‘Standard Method’ acknowledging that the White Paper, 
‘Planning for Change’ also published in August 2020 was considering more fundamental changes to 
the Standard Method 



6 
 
 

housing sites and therefore has not included all the potential allocations 
that will come forward as part of the evidence base and forthcoming 
consultations. Portsmouth City Council is the only authority to formally 
request FBC to take a proportion of their unmet need, hence the proposed 
900 dwelling figure in Table 1.  GBC’s approach is to: take into account 
forthcoming PfSH work as part of an updated planning strategy for the sub-
region; consider any new Standard Method when it is officially published; 
and continue to gather evidence on new allocations which is likely reduce 
the unmet need figure of 2,500 dwellings in Gosport Borough identified in 
the PfSH Joint Committee Report and included in the FLP2037. 

  
4.4 In order to meet the Standard Method housing requirement, the latest 

FLP2037 identifies a current supply of 10,594 dwellings which is an 
additional 2,205 dwellings than the 2020 version, and includes an 11% 
contingency which is slightly higher than the recommended 10%. This 
contingency is aimed to address any potential issue of under-delivery on 
certain sites. The supply includes 4,184 dwellings at Welborne to be 
delivered by 2037 (which is almost 700 less than the previous version), 
existing outstanding permissions and various allocations across Fareham 
Borough.  With regard to the increased supply, 653 is from additional 
housing sites in Fareham Town Centre, 139 from additional sites in other 
settlements and 1,986 is from additional edge of settlement sites. 

  
4.5 These allocations3 are detailed in the FLP2037 and includes a number of 

urban sites including areas on the east and west side of Fareham Railway 
Station, the Crofton Conservatory site on West Street, the Magistrates 
Court  and a new allocation on land north of Henry Cort Drive in Fareham. 
There are also sizeable allocations in Warsash, Titchfield Common, 
Portchester West (Downend Road East), Locks Heath, Funtley and the 
Hammond Industrial Estate in Hill Head. In addition there is an allocation 
termed, ‘Broad Location for Housing Growth’ for 620 dwellings (Policy BL2) 
which are unidentified sources of potential supply in Fareham Town Centre 
such as car parks, under-utilised shopping areas and opportunities for 
intensification. 

  
4.6 Importantly the land east of Newgate Lane East (known previously as HA2 

in the Regulation 18 consultation) is not included in the latest FLP2037, 
and therefore maintains the position included in the previous Regulation 19 
version. Members will recall that this represents a significant change in 
position from the three Regulation 18 versions which had previously 
included the site as an allocation for between 350 and   475 dwellings. The 
removal of the HA2 allocation on the land east of Newgate Lane East is 
supported. 

  
4.7 The main additional edge of settlement sites identified in the latest 

FLP2037 are: 

 Land east of Crofton Cemetery and west of Peak Lane, Stubbington 

                                            
3
 These allocations are summarised on p39-p40 of the FLP and detailed on pages 41-153 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/PDF/planning/local_plan/RevisedPublicationLocalPlan.pdf. 



7 
 
 

(180 dwellings) (HA54) 

 Land south of Longfield Avenue (1,250 dwellings)(HA55) 

 Land west of Downend Road (550 dwellings) (HA56) 
  
4.8 Of particular interest to Gosport Borough are the first two sites listed above 

which are located in the Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and 
Stubbington Strategic Gap as detailed below.  

  
 Housing allocations in the current Strategic Gap 
4.9 The proposed allocation east of Crofton Cemetery and west of Peak lane at 

Stubbington (HA54) includes two parcels of land north and south of 
Oakcroft Lane (Appendix A1). The primary access will be onto Peak Lane. 
Importantly it is only the land south of Oakcroft Lane which is to be 
developed for residential use (180 dwellings) with the land north of Oakcroft 
Lane being kept available for Brent Goose and wader use. This land will 
therefore remain undeveloped, remain in the Strategic Gap and provide a 
buffer between Stubbington and the new Bypass.  

  
4.10 The land south of Longfield Avenue (HA55) is an allocation of potentially 

1,250 dwellings and includes a primary school and local centre with 
commercial and community facilities (Appendix A2). As part of this proposal 
it is proposed to retain a significant area of green infrastructure between the 
development and the Stubbington Bypass as well as land on the western 
side of Peak Lane which will retain openness along the Bypass between 
Fareham and Stubbington.  The policy states that the development will 
need to maximise the open nature of the existing landscape between the 
settlements of Fareham and Stubbington,  

  
4.11 The policy states that the publicly accessible and managed green 

infrastructure shall be provided throughout the site incorporating existing 
and new ecological features. It will retain and link existing Public Rights of 
Way to create high quality parkland and natural greenspace as well as 
sports facilities. The access will be from Longfield Avenue and Peak Lane 
with no direct access onto the Stubbington Bypass. 

  
4.12 This is the first time that either of these sites have been identified as 

precise allocations. Previously, in the third Regulation 18 consultation  (Feb 
2020) the areas covered by these sites were part  of a conceptual and very 
extensive area of possible development known as the Strategic Growth 
Area (SGA), which covered the whole area between Fareham and 
Stubbington and was also being promoted at the same time as the former 
HA2 allocation.    

  
4.13 Due to the lack of detail and evidence available at that time the Council 

objected to the SGA on the following grounds: 

 That there had not been sufficient  transport modelling assessment 
undertaken at the time to ascertain whether a SGA was appropriate; 

 it was considered that the extent of the SGA failed to recognise the 
importance of the long-established Strategic Gap between Fareham, 



8 
 
 

Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington and that any significant 
development would affect the long established integrity and function 
of the Strategic Gap. 

 it was considered that the existing boundaries of the Strategic Gap 
should be retained in order to maintain an effective transport corridor 
through the gap.  Additional development immediately adjacent and 
accessing the route will negate all the benefits of the recently 
improved and commenced road infrastructure.  This investment has 
been implemented to address existing deficiencies not facilitate new 
development.   

  
4.14 Therefore there are two main strategic issues that need to be considered in 

relation to these two allocations are: 

 Can these allocations be developed in such a way which will not 
undermine the function of the Strategic Gap?  

 Can these allocations be developed without having a detrimental 
impact on the road infrastructure serving the Gosport Peninsula? 

  

4.15 These two points are considered in detail below. 
  

 Can these allocations be developed in such a way which will not undermine 
the function of the Strategic Gap?  

4.16 In relation to the Strategic Gap functions the Council previously raised an 
objection regarding the impact of the SGA on the continuing function of the 
Strategic Gap. It was considered that the extent of the area would have the 
potential to completely destroy any sense of Gap between the settlements. 
This previous objection related to the sheer extent of the SGA and any lack 
of detail on how a functional gap could still be maintained to protect the 
setting of each settlement, provide a sense of openness and prevent 
coalescence. 

  

4.17 In this consultation however the development areas are largely defined with 
more details on how the Strategic Gap will be protected with an emphasis 
given to green infrastructure. 

  

4.18 In all of its previous objections to the Fareham Local Plan the Council has 
used Fareham Borough Council’s evidence study ‘Fareham Landscape 
Assessment (FLA) (LDA 2017)’. The Council has also used this evidence 
document when objecting to the planning application at Brookers Lane as 
well as the appeal between Newgate Lane and Newgate Lane East which 
has recently been dismissed.  This study is well-prepared and made a 
strong case to protect the land east of Newgate Lane East as Strategic 
Gap.   

  
 

4.19 In relation to the gap between Fareham and Stubbington the FLA states.  
 

‘This area is a cohesive agricultural landscape which performs multiple roles 
in respect of the primary and secondary purposes and functions of the 
Strategic Gap. Even minor encroachment beyond the existing, strong 



9 
 
 

settlement boundary along the southern edge of Fareham could potentially 
disrupt local settlement pattern and character and have an adverse effect on 
the Gap functions and the overall integrity of the agricultural landscape. There 
may be some scope for very modest ‘rounding off’ of Stubbington on its 
northern edges, within existing parcels of land where development could be 
integrated without unacceptable impacts.’ 

  
4.20 A more recent study prepared by Hampshire County Council (September 

2020)  known as the ‘Technical Review of Areas of Special Landscape 
Quality and Strategic Gap’ has been prepared to take into account the 
completion of the Newgate Lane East and the proposed route of the 
Stubbington Bypass.  The two allocations are within two study areas 
outlined in the document with key points set out below: 
 

Study Area 7a- Land east of Titchfield Road and west of Peak Road: The 
Technical review strongly recommends that the vast majority of this section of 
the Strategic Gap remains.  It provides a useful recreational resource within a 
distinctive landscape that is good quality, where residents can walk in relative 
tranquillity away from roads and enjoy long and varied views. 

 
However there exists the potential to make modifications to the settlement 
boundary of north Stubbington, to extend the boundary to run along Oakcroft 
Lane as the isolated field does not protrude beyond the northern and western 
edges of Stubbington. Subject to detailed design it is possible for development 
to take place without risking the integrity of the Gap. 

 
Study Area 7b- East of Peak Lane and west of HMS Collingwood: Due to 
the characteristic of land in this area (flatter, less varied vegetation blocks, 
less opportunities to view across the land, and more ‘visual distractors’ such 
as HMS Collingwood) it possible for the main field to absorb some 
development without a significant impact on the visual quality of the Strategic 
Gap subject to detailed design, scale and function.  If managed appropriately 
development could have a beneficial effect on the GI network (recreational 
and environmental).  Therefore a change to the Strategic Gap could be 
potentially accommodated without undermining the principle purpose of the 
gap to prevent coalescence of settlements.  However more detailed testing of 
development forms is required 

 
The Technical Review concludes that the Strategic Gap is sub-regionally 
important but opportunities exist for some development to be absorbed within 
the Strategic Gap subject to scale and detailed design, without compromising 
its Gap function combined with mitigation measures the can support green 
infrastructure enhancement.  These adjustments include land south of 
Oakcroft Lane in Stubbington and areas south of Fareham, west of HMS 
Collingwood on the understanding that a green infrastructure strategy is 
implemented which enhances the green buffer. 

  
4.21 With regard to the HA54 site in Stubbington it would appear that a 

development south of Oakcroft Lane could represent the rounding off 
potential as outlined in the FLA and specifically mentioned in the HCC 
study.  Securing the land north of Oakcroft Lane for Brent Goose and wader 
mitigation would safeguard a buffer between the new Bypass and the 
settlement; and with a significant land buffer on the north side of the road 



10 
 
 

would likely secure a functional gap at this location. This would help 
maintain a sense of openness when travelling along the Bypass and retain 
a sense that one is travelling between settlements in a rural rather than 
suburban setting. 

  
4.22 The allocation south of Longfield Avenue is harder to justify in terms of the 

FLA landscape evidence as it states that there is a strong settlement 
boundary on the southern edge of Fareham and consequently development 
beyond this could potentially disrupt local settlement pattern and character 
and have an adverse effect on the Gap functions and the overall integrity of 
the agricultural landscape.  However the 2020 HCC Study outlines the 
potential for development on part of the land east of Peak Lane and west of 
Collingwood which if designed appropriately would not have a detrimental 
impact on the function of the Strategic Gap. 

  
4.23 It is the role of each local authority to review the boundaries of their 

settlements and strategic gaps as part of the Local Plan process. The 
important issue to consider is whether there is the possibility for some 
development to be located within the Gap between Fareham and 
Stubbington without the prime functions of the Strategic Gap being 
compromised. 

  
4.24 The criteria to define strategic gap boundaries were included in the South 

Hampshire Strategy (Oct 2012) The criteria are as follows:- 

 the designation is needed to retain the open nature and/or sense of 
separation between settlements; 

 the land to be included within the Gap performs an important role in 
defining the settlement character of the area and separating 
settlements at risk of coalescence; 

 the Gap boundaries should not preclude the provision being made 
for the development proposed in this Strategy; 

 the Gap should include no more land than is necessary to prevent 
the coalescence of settlements having regarding to maintaining their 
physical and visual separation. 

  
4.25 It would appear from the evidence studies when taken together and from 

the information in the latest FLA2037 that it could be possible to locate 
development in the two suggested locations provided the design is of a high 
quality and that the buffers are considered as an integral part of the design 
and not an after-thought.  There appears to be a sufficient gap between the 
allocation and the bypass to ensure that there is a sense of openness when 
travelling along the bypass and a rural rather than suburban character is 
maintained.  It would appear from the indicative diagram and the policy 
intentions that the overall strategic gap criteria are being met.  It will be 
essential for the remaining undeveloped land between the bypass and 
Fareham to be secured in perpetuity for green infrastructure purposes.   

  
 Can these allocations be developed without having a detrimental impact on 

the road infrastructure serving the Gosport Peninsula? 



11 
 
 

4.26 The Council’s main concerns when objecting to the SGA related to 
fundamentally two inter-related issues: 

 would the design of the development have a detrimental impact on 
the operational effectiveness of the new road infrastructure through 
for example the incorporating of new accesses onto the Stubbington 
Bypass which would affect the overall flow of traffic?; 

 would the volume of traffic in combination with other developments 
negate the benefits derived from the new road infrastructure in terms 
of alleviating acute accessibility issues to and from the Gosport 
Peninsula?   

  
4.27 At the time of the third Regulation 18 consultation (February 2020) 

insufficient transport modelling and assessment work had taken place and 
there was a lack of detail of how the SGA would work.   The two proposed 
allocations identified in the latest FLP2037 clearly highlight that there would 
be no new direct access onto the Stubbington Bypass with HA54 being 
accessed off Peak Lane and HA55 being accessed of Longfield Avenue 
and Peak Lane with specific reference that there would be no direct access 
onto the Stubbington Bypass.  This therefore overcomes the Council’s first 
concern in that there will be no new additional access points onto the 
Stubbington Bypass.  

  
4.28 As part of the evidence study for the first Regulation 19 (which didn’t 

include these two allocations) the evidence included a transport 
assessment which took into account the SGA South of Fareham which 
made an assumption at the time of the modelling for some 1,975 dwellings 
modelled for the whole gap area.  This is higher than the actual proposed 
allocations which is 1,430 dwellings. 

  
4.29 It concluded that junctions in the area would not be unduly impacted by new 

development and that defined criteria relating to capacity hotspots are not 
reached and therefore mitigation is not required. It recognises that whilst 
traffic flow would be very high at junctions such as Longfield Avenue/ 
Newgate Lane there would be no increase in delay and consequently no 
mitigation would be required for this or other junctions in the vicinity. Five 
other junctions elsewhere on Fareham are identified requiring mitigation. 

  
4.30 Whilst these findings are noted it is considered further work is required. 

The Council considers that as part of any future Statement of Common 
Ground, which is a requirement under the Duty to Cooperate, this Council 
would like to discuss these finding in more detail with Fareham Borough 
Council and Hampshire County Council.  The Council considers that 
further work is required in order to take into account the growth proposed 
in the forthcoming GBLP2038 to ensure that the full implications of access 
to and from the Peninsula are taken into account.  It is considered that 
because of the limited transport choices and limited road network on the 
Peninsula that an in-combination approach is needed in this particular 
instance.   

  
4.31 It is necessary to demonstrate that green field development in the Strategic 



12 
 
 

Gap does not prejudice brownfield development and regeneration 
opportunities further south in Gosport Borough.  There is a risk that 
highway capacity is reduced such that brownfield sites would be expected 
to fund and mitigate transport interventions to become acceptable.  Given 
that brownfield sites are in many cases likely to have other factors affecting 
viability the addition of further transport mitigation requirements may reduce 
overall viability and deliverability. 

  
4.32 It is therefore considered without this in-combination work the overall traffic 

on the highway network will be underestimated, and therefore it is not 
possible to be definitive that these proposed allocations will not have an 
adverse impact on the operation of individual junctions in combination. 

  
4.33 The transport assessment would be based on existing modelling by both 

local authorities and would consider these allocations together with 
proposed growth on the Gosport Peninsula as set out in both the FLP2037 
and the emerging GBLP2038. 

  
4.34 It is therefore proposed to submit a holding objection until this work has 

been undertaken and demonstrates that there is no detrimental impact on 
the road network and if there are particular issues identified that suitable 
mitigation measures can be incorporated which is not to the detriment of 
Gosport residents and businesses. 

  
 Conclusion regarding the two new allocations 
4.35 In conclusion due to FBC’s significant housing requirement it is understood 

why it has been necessary to review the settlement boundaries in relation 
to HA54 and HA55.  These sites are preferable for sensitive development 
from a strategic gap perspective than the former HA2 allocation at Newgate 
Lane East.  It is clear the Gap adjacent to Newgate Lane East is particularly 
vulnerable at that location but this accentuates its importance as a 
functional gap in which it is still possible to experience the separation 
between settlements and there is an appreciable feeling of travelling 
between urban conurbations, through an area of Countryside, as part of this 
Gap’s function.   

  
4.36 These characteristics are also important in relation to the Stubbington 

Bypass between Stubbington and Fareham and it would be appear that the 
width of the gap at this location and particular characteristics outlined in the 
HCC study (2020) does enable some development potential north of 
Stubbington and south of Fareham.  The function of the Strategic Gap at 
this location can only be protected however if the significant  buffers are 
retained in perpetuity on both sides of the road and that the edge of both 
allocations are very carefully designed  with a positive relationship with the 
surrounding countryside.  Whilst not ideal it would seem that the Council 
should not make a formal objection with regard to these two allocations in 
terms of the settlement function of the Strategic Gap.  However it will need 
to comment further on any detailed proposals in future in order to ensure 
that they reflect the principles outlined in the relevant policies in terms of 
the extent of the development and the use of green infrastructure to protect 



13 
 
 

the remaining Strategic Gap. 
  
4.37 It is considered important that FBC can meet its housing requirements and 

that a site such as the land south of Longfield Avenue can represent a 
planned strategy of land release rather than the constant piecemeal and 
speculative applications which the area has been subjected to in recent 
years.  A high quality development that retains the functions of the Strategic 
Gap and delivers improved green infrastructure is therefore preferred than 
inappropriate development in inappropriate locations.  Importantly the 
detailed allocations in the latest FLP2037 overcome the Council’s previous 
Strategic Gap objections in relation to the SGA where development could 
have been developed adjacent to the Stubbington Bypass with no 
functioning Strategic Gap 

  
4.38 It is also clear that the proposed allocations will not have any new access 

points off the Stubbington Bypass which overcomes another of the 
Council’s previous objections.  

  
4.39 However, notwithstanding the above, it is considered that the Council 

should make a holding objection until such time that a combined transport 
assessment is completed which can demonstrate that the allocations will 
not have a detrimental impact on the strategic road network serving the 
Gosport Peninsula and that any noted impacts can be satisfactorily 
mitigated.  This would form part of the Statement of Common Ground which 
each Council is obliged to produce as part of their statutory Duty to 
Cooperate. The Council needs to be reassured that the FLP2037 proposals 
together with the proposals in the forthcoming GBLP2038 do not have a 
detrimental effect on the effectiveness of the significant new road 
infrastructure at Newgate Lane East and the Stubbington Bypass. 

  
 Housing policies 
4.40 The FLP2037 includes a number of housing policies which aim to deliver a 

diverse range of housing to meet local needs. The Council’s objections to 
Policies HP4 and HP6 are outlined in paragraphs 5.7-5.26 below in 
connection with Policy DS1 relating to development in the countryside.    

  
5 Strategic and Countryside Policies 
  
 Protection of the Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington 

Strategic Gap 
5.1 As mentioned above in relation to the housing allocations the Strategic Gap 

has been retained along both sides of Newgate Lane East. The 
maintenance of the Strategic Gap in this location is supported.   

  
5.2 This major change in FBC’s Local Plan from the earlier Regulation 18 

consultations is likely to result in significant objections from a number of 
landowners and developers who have an interest in these previously 
identified allocations and proposals.  Consequently these matters are likely 
to be heard at the EiP conducted by a Planning Inspector.   

  



14 
 
 

5.3 A Planning Inspector will consider all representations as part of the EiP 
received at the Publication Plan (Regulation 19) consultation including 
those supporting the Local Plan.  However the Inspector will normally invite 
those that have objected to the Local Plan to the EiP sessions along with 
FBC. It is therefore important that in the Council’s supporting comments for 
the revised proposals it is made clear why the Strategic Gap is so 
fundamentally important to Gosport Borough and in addition it is considered 
important that previous objections are appended to the representation in 
order that the Inspector can fully consider the reasons why this Council 
objected to the previous proposals, which the developers and landowners 
will be attempting to reintroduce. 

  
5.4 As highlighted above in paragraphs 4.9-4.39 the main difference with the 

previous version of the Local Plan is how the Strategic Gap is shown in 
relation to the proposed HA54 and HA55 allocations.  The text in relation to 
the housing allocations will form part of the Council’s representation on 
soundness.  In addition the proposed boundary of the Strategic Gap in 
relation to the proposed developable part of the HA55 site south of 
Longfield Avenue is not understood as it shows the entire area remaining 
within the Strategic Gap.  It is not clear whether this is a cartographic 
oversight or there is a particular reason which is not explicit in the text. 
Clarity will be sought on this matter. 

  
5.5 It is proposed that this Council formally reiterates its support regarding the 

wording of Policy DS2 shown below which seeks to protect the Strategic 
Gap.   
 

Policy DS2: Development in Strategic Gap 
 
‘In order to prevent coalescence of urban areas and to maintain 
separate identity of settlements, Strategic Gaps are identified as 
shown on the Policies Map between the following areas: 
 
1) Fareham/Stubbington and the Western Wards (Meon Gap) 
2) Fareham/Bridgemary and Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent 

(Fareham-Stubbington Strategic Gap) 
 

Development proposals will not be permitted where they significantly 
affect the integrity of the gap and the physical and visual separation of 
settlements of the distinctive nature of settlement characters.’ 

 

  
5.6 In addition to supporting Policy DS2 and the extent of the Strategic Gap 

shown on the Policies Map the Council would also like to support the 
following: 
 

 Fareham Local Plan 2037 Vision which states that Fareham Borough 
will retain its identity, and the identity of individual settlements within 
the Borough, through measures that seek to retain the valued 
landscapes and settlement definition; and 

 Strategic Priority 2 which seeks to maximise development within the 



15 
 
 

urban area and away from the wider countryside, valued landscaped 
and spaces that contribute to settlement definition. 

  
 Development in the countryside 
5.7 The relevant sections of the FLP2037 of particular interest to the Council 

remain unchanged in the latest version and therefore the text included in 
the previous report to the Regulatory Board is largely unchanged below 
(with any particular differences set out). It is recommended that the 
representations on these matters are resubmitted. 

  
5.8 Policy DS1 relates to development in the countryside and the overall 

approach is to limit development in the countryside outside of the urban 
area boundaries as defined on the Policies Map.  The policy sets out those 
circumstances where development will be supported outside the urban area 
boundary. In most instances these circumstances are limited in scope and 
scale. In addition the policy includes five criteria (i-v) which any of the 
identified exceptions need to adhere to. This includes requiring developers 
of any such exception to demonstrate that their proposal: 

 requires a location outside of the urban area;  

 would conserve and enhance landscapes, sites of biological or 
geological value and soils;  

 recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside and 
if relevant the development does not significantly affect the integrity 
of a Strategic Gap; 

 maintain the character of the undeveloped coast; and  

 are not on Best and Most Versatile agricultural land. 
  
5.9 Whilst many of the exceptions appear reasonable, particularly when 

assessed against the five criteria outlined above, there is concern relating 
to development cited in point e) in the policy which reads:  
 

Proposals for development in the countryside, which is defined as 
land outside the Urban Area boundary, as shown on the Policies 
Map, will be supported where the proposal (inter alia) 
 

 e) is for housing development compliant with one of the following 
policies HP1, HP2, HP4, HP5 HP6 and HP11.  

  
5.10 The Council does not have particular concerns with the link to Policies HP1, 

HP2 and HP11 nor the way these policies are worded. Policy HP1  is a 
standard ‘housing in the countryside’ policy relating to the conversion of 
existing buildings and replacement dwellings; Policy HP2 enables very 
small scale development of no more than 4 dwellings in scale with its 
surroundings; and  HP11 is a standard criteria-based policy relating to sites 
for gypsies, travellers and travelling show.  

  
5.11 However the Council has concerns over the following aspects: 

 

 The link in Policy DS1 to Policy HP4 and the wording of Policy HP4; 



16 
 
 

 The link in Policy DS1 to Policy HP5, although the wording of HP5 is 
not a particular issue; 

 The link in Policy DS1 to Policy HP6 and the wording of Policy HP6 
  
5.12 Taking each in turn, Policy HP4 relates to the Five Year Housing Supply 

and where the Council cannot demonstrate a five year supply of land for 
residential development, additional housing sites outside the urban area 
boundary will [rather than ‘may’ as used in the previous version] be 
permitted where they meet all the following criteria: 

 The proposal is relative in scale to the demonstrated five year 
housing land supply shortfall; 

 The proposal is sustainably located adjacent to, and well related to, 
the existing urban area boundaries and can be well integrated with 
the neighbouring settlement; 

 The proposal is sensitively designed to reflect the landscape 
character and setting of the settlement, is of a scale proportionate to 
its setting and recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the 
countryside and, if relevant does not affect the integrity of a Strategic 
Gap; 

 It can be demonstrated that the proposal is deliverable in the short 
term; and 

 The proposal would not have unacceptable environmental, amenity 
and traffic implications. 

  
5.13 The Council objects to both the wording of Policy HP4 and the link to DS1 

policy as it implies that if Fareham’s five year housing supply is not met, the 
first area of search is outside of the urban area boundary.  Instead the 
policy should refer to sites within urban areas, brownfield land, underutilised 
employment sites, sites close to train stations, under-utilised town centre 
sites such as car parks and shopping precincts, consideration of using 
Council land assets and other public sector land, intensification of existing 
neighbourhoods, as well as opportunities to increase densities on existing 
allocations such as Welborne.  These types of sites should be clearly 
identified as being preferential before greenfield land outside the urban 
area, particularly within the Strategic Gap, are considered.    

  
5.14 It is understandable why the FLP2037 has a policy relating to this matter as 

the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires 
local planning authorities to have a five year housing supply and if this 
cannot be demonstrated the relevant allocation policies in an adopted Local 
Plan (even a recently adopted one) become out of date and consequently 
housing can take place on sites previously not identified for housing.  Both 
Councils have made representations to the Government in the past 
regarding this matter and how it is detrimental to a plan-led system by 
creating uncertainty for local communities and undermining the effective 
provision of infrastructure to serve these new residents.  This is particularly 
the case when such sites can proceed on a cumulative and speculative 
basis without a comprehensive assessment of impacts that would normally 
be undertaken at the local plan-making stage.  



17 
 
 

  
5.15 This policy is therefore aiming to set out criteria to assess any proposal that 

comes forward that is not allocated in an adopted Local Plan.  However it is 
this Council’s view that the presence of the policy seems to direct 
development towards greenfield sites quite readily before other urban and 
more sustainable sites are fully considered. 

  
5.16 Policy HP5 relates to the provision of affordable housing on sites of 10 or 

more and the Council has no particular issue with the wording of HP5.  
However when it is linked with Policy DS1 it could be interpreted that FBC 
will accept in principle the development of any affordable housing site 
outside the urban area boundary.  Whilst the criteria i-v exists  there is 
concern that unsuitable developments in the Strategic Gap could be 
developed in a piecemeal fashion with a number of different speculative 
sites coming forward adjacent to others of varying sizes. It is considered 
that the inclusion of a link to HP5 does not provide sufficient certainty of 
what development will take place over the plan period; nor does it ensure 
that the environmental, transport and infrastructure implications of each 
affordable housing development has been fully assessed in combination 
with adopted allocations or other speculative proposals coming forward 
over the plan period.  

  
5.17 Whilst it is not considered the intention of the policy it could potentially 

enable large scale housing development outside of the urban area 
boundary if it can be demonstrated that 40% affordable housing is being 
achieved. 

  
5.18 It is therefore not proposed to object to the wording of Policy HP5; only that 

the link included in DS1 is removed.  It is considered that if development 
does come forward in the countryside through other policy mechanisms this 
policy could still be used as each policy in the plan needs to be read in 
conjunction with all other relevant plans, and consequently the affordable 
housing policy would still apply for developments over 10 dwellings.  The 
removal of the reference in DS1 would remove this being cited as a primary 
reason for development in the Strategic Gap ahead of more suitable sites 
within the urban area in both Fareham and Gosport Boroughs. 

  
5.19 Policy HP6 relates to affordable housing exception sites and is a 

commonly used policy across England to allow small affordable housing 
sites adjacent to villages to be developed on land which would not normally 
be permitted to come forward. This would enable viable schemes to be 
implemented to meet very local needs. In principle the Council does not 
have an objection to such a policy nor its link to DS1 enabling such 
schemes to come forward outside the urban area. However the way in 
which the policy is worded could enable the development of significant 
schemes in the Strategic Gap.  The policy  includes the following text: 
 
Policy HP6: Exception Sites  



18 
 
 

The development of Rural Exception Sites will be permitted where: 

a) All dwellings are affordable (as defined in the NPPF); and  
 

b) The affordable delivery is not meeting the affordable housing need 
and the development is relative in scale to the shortfall; and 

 
c) The development is located adjacent to, and well related to, the  

existing urban area boundaries; and 
 

d) The affordable rent products will be brought forward by, and will be 
managed by, a not for profit social housing provider who is regulated by 
Homes England; and 

 
e) The affordable housing meets the local needs of the adjacent 

settlement. 

The development of Entry-Level Exception Sites suitable for first time buyers 
(or those looking to rent their first home)will be permitted where: 

a) The site is adjacent to existing settlements; and  
b) All dwellings are affordable (as defined in the NPPF), and a range of 

affordable tenure types, including those that are suitable for first-time 
renters or buyers are provided; and 

c) The site is less than1 hectare or relative in scale (does not exceed 5% 
of the size of the adjacent settlement); and  

d) It can be demonstrated, based on an up to date local housing needs 
assessment, that the need for the housing proposed will not be met 
through the allocations in the Plan or development with extant planning 
permission. 

 
 

  
5.20 Whilst it appears from the accompanying justification text that the intention 

of the policy is to enable the development of small sites there is concern 
that the wording of the policy as shown above could be used to enable 
much larger scale development.  For example, the first part of the policy 
could potentially facilitate a single or a series of large scale affordable 
housing developments in the Strategic Gap. If such schemes are promoted 
speculatively in a number of locations in the Strategic Gap there would be 
no opportunity to assess the in-combination environmental, landscape or 
infrastructure implications for the Gosport Peninsula.  

  
5.21 The second part of the policy would allow entry-level exception sites with a 

limit of 1 hectare and a proviso that the scheme does not exceed 5% of the 
size of the adjacent settlement.  Potentially this could lead to a series of 1 
hectare entry home exception sites to be developed adjacent to the 
Gosport Borough boundary and as the town is large the 5% restriction 
would be meaningless. 

  
5.22 It is clear from the recent number of speculative applications in the 

Strategic Gap how both parts of the policy (together with HP4 and HP5) 
could be used by developers to argue a case for development in these 



19 
 
 

locations with the detrimental implications as set out previously in the 
Council’s objections to the Regulation 18 consultations (see Paragraph 1.6-
1.7). 

  
5.23 Whilst this does not appear to be the policy’s intention the wording would 

certainly enable developers to argue this position.  Consequently the 
wording of the policy needs to be amended to refer to existing settlements 
that are within Fareham Borough only’.  This would then provide clarity that 
development adjacent to Gosport Borough would not be considered under 
this policy.  The policy also needs to set an upper limit of what is meant by 
‘small sites’ which is a term used in the justification text (paragraph 5.46 of 
FLP) but not in the policy itself. The policy also needs to define what is 
meant by small sites.  This will avoid unintended significant development in 
the Strategic Gap. Finally there needs to be some explicit wording which 
resists successive one hectare parcels of land coming forward in the same 
vicinity. 

  
5.24 Taking all these concerns together it is clear that the wording of the policies 

linked to DS1 could result in a series of small, medium and large scale 
developments which collectively affect the integrity of the Strategic Gap and 
undermine the major transport improvements which have been provided to 
alleviate current access issues.  

  
5.25 When policies HP4, HP5 and HP6 are linked to DS1 it is possible to identify 

the risk that a proposal equivalent to HA2 could come forward during the 
Plan period.  The risk is exacerbated as a series of sites could come 
forward whereby the cumulative impact would not be sufficiently assessed 
as they would be speculative sites becoming available on a piecemeal 
manner.  Whilst a strong case could be made that each single development 
would not necessarily meet criteria i-v in DS1 or similar criteria in HP4 and 
HP6, it is clear that without a five year housing supply either FBC or an 
Inspector on appeal  could grant a series of permissions outside the urban 
area boundary.  This would be detrimental to the function of the Strategic 
Gap in terms of its settlement function and would have a cumulative 
detrimental impact on the new strategic road infrastructure in terms of 
undermining the effectiveness of providing the much anticipated improved 
access to Gosport Borough and the southern part of Fareham Borough 
(Stubbington and Hillhead). 

  
5.26 As a result of these links there is the potential for developers to bring 

forward significant development in the Strategic Gap outside of the Local 
Plan allocations if it can be demonstrated that FBC does not have a five 
year housing supply.  Given the difficulties for FBC to demonstrate this 
currently and the fact that its housing supply depends significantly on the 
delivery of Welborne there is a real possibility that multiple speculative sites 
could come forward in the Strategic Gap which could cumulatively have a 
detrimental impact on the function of the Strategic Gap as set out in 
previous consultation responses. 

  
6 Employment 



20 
 
 

6.1 According to the latest PfSH Economic, Employment and Commercial 
Needs (including logistics) Study (2021) the FLP2037 has a requirement of 
121,964m2 floorspace between 2021 and 2037 (Policy E1). This is an 
increase from 104,000m2.  The latest plan identifies a current supply of 
243,554 m2 including the 76,140 m2 identified in the Welborne Plan and 
consequently is 121,590m2 in excess of the requirement. The FLP 
considers this overprovision an acceptable approach to cater for flexibility 
and choice of supply in terms of time and type of employment space, as set 
out in the NPPF and accompanying Planning Practice Guidance. 

  
6.2 The three previously identified employment allocations included in the 

FLP2037 are the Faraday Business Park (Daedalus East) the Swordfish 
Business Park (Daedalus West) and Solent 2 Whiteley. The additional land 
is identified at Wallington, Segensworth and land north of St Margaret’s 
roundabout at Titchfield. The provision at Daedalus is set out in Table 2. 
 

 Table 2: Proposed employment provision at Daedalus (within Fareham 
Borough) 

 
 Site General Industrial 

Storage or Distribution m2 

Faraday Business Park 
(Daedalus East) 

65,1004 

Swordfish Business Park 
(Daedalus West 

12,8005 

Total 77,900 
 

6.3 The Fareham part of the Daedalus site will ultimately deliver around 
128,400m2 employment floorspace within. 

  
6.4 This significant amount of floorspace at Daedalus will create new 

employment opportunities for Gosport residents reducing the need to leave 
the Peninsula, offering genuine transport choices other than the private car 
which will reduce congestion and air pollution. 

  
6.5 The Faraday Business Park (Policy E2) and the Swordfish Business Park 

(Policy E3) represent an extension and intensification of the original 
strategic employment allocations included in the current adopted Fareham 
Local Plan (part 1) (2011).  The policy includes a number of development 
safeguards relating to access requirements, not prejudicing the operation of 
the Solent Airport as well as provisions relating to design, nature 
conservation interests, flood risk, contamination and infrastructure. 

  
6.6 Both sites have been taken out of the Strategic Gap, when compared with 

the current Adopted Local Plan, however the development of employment 
uses will be a high-quality design to reflect the style and appearance of 
existing development adjacent to the airfield to create much needed 
employment opportunities on the Peninsula. The employment proposals will 
maintain the significant Strategic Gap of the airfield itself. The proposals are 

                                            
4
 In addition to the 28,500m2 already consented in Dec 2013 

5
 In addition to the 22,000m2 already consented in Dec 2013 



21 
 
 

particularly important as Gosport Borough has the lowest job density in the 
South East and one of the lowest in England. 

  
6.7 Due to the importance of the Daedalus site for both local authorities the 

Council supports the following: 
  the FLP2037 vision for ‘New employment space will be located in the 

most appropriate locations that are attractive to the market and 
acceptable in terms of environment impact.  Existing employment 
areas and zones will be supported and all decisions made will seek a 
sustainable future for the employment provision in the Borough and 
associated jobs.’ 

 Strategic Priority 6, which seeks to protect important employment 
areas and zones and providing for future employment floorspace 

 Policies E1, E2 and E3, which allocates land at Daedalus for new 
employment floorspace. 

  
6.8 This Council also supports Policy E5 of the FLP2037, which seeks to 

protect existing employment areas with the relevant policy considerations 
should it be demonstrated with the appropriate evidence (as defined in the 
policy)  that the sites are no longer fit for purposes. It is important that 
existing employment sites in Fareham including a number on the Gosport 
Peninsula are protected including those along Newgate Lane and close to 
Fareham Town Centre as they provide employment to Gosport residents 
and  are potentially accessible by bus, cycling or walking. 

  
6.9 Policy E6 aims to protect marine-related employment uses.  This policy is 

supported as the availability of waterfront sites around the Solent is limited 
and the marine businesses they support contribute to one of the key 
sectors of the sub-regional economy of which Gosport marine sites form 
part of a cluster. 

  
6.10 Policy E7 relates to the Solent Airport at Daedalus, which protects the site 

for airport related uses to support aviation activities unless it can be 
demonstrated that such uses are no longer financially viable. 

  
6.11 It is important that the airfield is retained to support a large number of 

employers at the Daedalus site which provides one of the key reasons for 
many businesses to locate and expand on the site. The justification text 
highlights that the Solent Airport has consent for up to 40,000 flight 
movements per year.  There are no indications in the FLP2037 that any 
changes will be sought on this matter. 

  
7 Transport  
7.1 Policy TIN2 is supported as it aims to ensure development does not have 

an unacceptable impact on highway safety and the residual cumulative 
impact on the road network is not severe.  The impacts on the local and 
strategic highway arising from development itself or the cumulative effects 
of development on the network are required to be mitigated through a 
sequential approach consisting of measures that would avoid/reduce the 
need to travel, active travel, public transport and the provision of 



22 
 
 

improvements to the local network or contributions towards off-site 
transport schemes.  

  
7.2 Policy TIN3 safeguards land between Delme Roundabout and the 

Portsmouth Boundary and the Quay Street Roundabout to support the 
delivery of the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme. The extension 
will help improve public transport access to Gosport Borough and improve 
the wider network. Consequently the scheme and Policy TIN3 is supported. 

  
8 Other Policies 
  
8.1 There have been no significant changes in relation to the following policy 

areas but for completeness and the avoidance of doubt the text from the 
previous report has largely been re-iterated unless specifically identified.  
 

 Retail and Community Facilities 
8.2 The Plan includes policies that aim to protect the centres within Fareham 

Borough.  Convenience retail need during the Local Plan period is deemed 
to be in the order of 2,200 m2 with no additional comparison required and 
2,400m2 of food and beverage use.  Very little of this is planned over the 
period to 2027, indeed it is considered that current vacant floorspace will 
meet this requirement to 2027 and any additional floorspace allocations 
would not be appropriate at this time.  Consequently such evidence will be 
reviewed for the next Local Plan which now have to be prepared every five 
years.  

  
8.3 Proposals relating to out-of-town shopping areas such as Speedfields Park 

(Newgate Lane) will be subject to Policy R2 which requires an impact 
assessment for proposals of 500sq.m or over (both new units or 
extensions) in order to demonstrate that there are no significant adverse 
effect on the vitality and viability of existing or proposed centres.  This 
approach is supported. Other policies protect community facilities in a 
similar way as the Gosport Borough Local Plan (GBLP). 

  
 Climate change and the natural environment 
8.4 The FLP2037 includes a series of plans which aim to mitigate and adapt to 

climate change as well as protect the natural environment.  The policies 
contained in this Plan take into account the latest guidance set out in the 
NPPF and accompanying Government advice. The only change to this 
policy is that the policy supports development that exceeds Building 
Regulation requirements. This Council will be aiming to produce similar 
policies for its emerging Local Plan.   

  
8.5 Biodiversity policies of particular interest to Gosport Borough include: Policy 

NE1 which protects the local ecological network which ultimately links with 
sites in Gosport such as the Alver Valley; Policy NE2 on biodiversity net 
gain; Policy NE3 which relates to recreation disturbance affecting 
internationally important sites and NE4 relating to the eutrophication of 
these sites; and Policy NE5 which protect important Brent goose and wader 
sites. The overall approach to these matters is supported and reflects this 



23 
 
 

Council’s own approach. 
  
8.6 Policy NE8 relates to air quality and given that Fareham has two Air Quality 

Management Areas (AQMA) at the north end of the Peninsula, the Plan’s 
approach to improving air quality is supported requiring developments to 
mitigate any identified effects of development on air quality with AQMAs. 

  
8.7 Policy NE9 relates to the protecting and enhancing the Borough’s green 

infrastructure.  This Council supports this policy and looks forward to 
working with FBC in securing green infrastructure improvements in the 
Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington Strategic Gap. This 
includes mitigating and adapting to climate change (renewable energy, 
flood storage), improved informal recreational access and enhancing 
biodiversity. Given the importance of the Strategic Gap it is recommended 
that Policy NE9 includes specific reference to the potential for green 
infrastructure improvements in this area.  

  
 Design and heritage 
8.8 The Plan includes a number of design and heritage policies which generally 

reflects the approach taken by Gosport Borough. 
  
9 Next steps 
9.1 After the Regulation 19 Consultation ends on the 31st July, FBC will 

consider the responses in the light of the tests of soundness and then 
envisages submitting the Local Plan in the Autumn 2021 with an expected 
independent Examination in Public to be held in Winter/Spring 2022 with 
eventual adoption Autumn/Winter 2022.  

  
10 Risk Assessment 
10.1 
 

Failure to respond to the consultation documents from Fareham Borough 
Council could result in the development of policies and proposals which 
are likely to be unfavourable to our community and its environment and be 
prejudicial to the development of Gosport’s economy. Where Fareham 
Borough Council have significantly changed their position from previous 
rounds of consultation particularly regarding development east of Newgate 
Lane East, it is important that our previous objections are forwarded to the 
Planning Inspector for consideration in order to counter expected 
objections from landowners and developers.  

  

Financial Services 
comments: 

None 

Legal Services 
comments: 

Contained within the report  

Climate Change FBC produce their own assessment as part of its 
Sustainability Appraisal for the whole document. 

Equality and Diversity  FBC produce their own Equality and Diversity statement 
to accompany the Local Plan 

Service Improvement 
Plan implications: 

None 



24 
 
 

Council Plan: Proposals may have economic and accessibility  
implications for developing our economy  

Risk Assessment: See section 9 

Background papers: Fareham Local Plan 2037- Revised Publication plan 
(Regulation 19)  
 
Economic Development Board Report 2nd December 
2020 
 
Economic Development Board Report 28th February 
2020 
 
Economic Development Board Report- 23rd July 2019 
 
Economic Development Board Report- 6th December 
2017 

Appendices Appendix A1: East of Crofton Cemetery Allocation 
Appendix A2: South of Longfield Avenue Allocation 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Jayson Grygiel, Manager of Planning Policy  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A1: East of Crofton Cemetery Allocation 
 



25 
 
 

 
 
Appendix A2: South of Longfield Avenue Allocation 
 



26 
 
 

 

 



Regulatory Board Agenda:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 1 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD  
 
21st July 2021 
 
ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 

be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the meeting.  
Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the Regulatory 
Board is to be held. 

 
2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the time 

the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this date, 
these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation. 

 
3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection by 

Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 above. 
 
4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with a 

summary of each recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item 7



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 2 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

INDEX 
 

Item Page 
No 

Appl. No. Address Recommendation 

 
 

01. 3-6/1 21/00204/VOC Fleetlands Motoring Centre  
Fareham Road  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO13 0AT   

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
02. 7-

12/1 
21/00290/FULL Land At HMS Sultan   

Grange Road  Gosport  
PO12 3BY     

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
03. 13-16 21/00294/FULL 20 Atkinson Close  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 2BZ     
Refuse 
 

 
04. 17-22 21/00093/FULL Brune Park Community 

School  Military Road  
Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 
3BU   

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
05. 23-

26/1 
21/00269/VOC Bay House School  Gomer 

Lane  Gosport  Hampshire  
PO12 2QP   

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
 
  



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 3 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

ITEM NUMBER: 01.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00204/VOC  
APPLICANT: Hillside Estates Limited   
DATE REGISTERED: 16.04.2021 

 
VARIATION OF CONDITION 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION K15962 (01/00188/FULL) TO 
ALLOW ADDITIONAL VEHICLE SALES AND DISPLAY AREA 
Fleetlands Motoring Centre  Fareham Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 0AT   

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the east side of Fareham Road and comprises car sales, a car wash, car 
repair garage and a cafe. There are to access roads into the site at the northern and southern ends 
with a grass verge between. A railing, less than 1m in height, separates the car wash and car sales 
from the grass verge which extends towards Fareham Road.   
 
2. The surrounding area is a mix of commercial and residential uses.  Those uses on the wider site 
are noted above, and there is a bus stop, within a layby, directly in front of the application site, 
situated between the two access roads.  There are industrial units to the south and a more recently 
constructed timber merchants to the north.  The industrial units to the south are set back 22m from 
Fareham Road with a verge between. Beyond this is Barwell Lane and on its southern side there is 
a vacant drive-thru site, with a fence set back approximately 9m, and further to the south is a drive-
thru KFC . The timber merchant building, to the north, is set back a significant distance from 
Fareham Road, but has a storage/sales area to the front, surrounded by a 2.4m high mesh 
fencing, set back 7m from Fareham Road with a grass verge between.  On the opposite side of 
Fareham Road are existing residential properties, with the houses set back in excess of 15m from 
the highway.  
 
3. The proposals relate to the variation of condition 4 of planning permission K.15962.  The 
condition limits the sales area and states:  
 
"No motor vehicle, boat, trailer or caravan may be parked, stored or displayed for sale within the 
area hatched black on the approved plan and this area shall be kept clear at all times. 
reason - In the interests of highway safety and visual amenity, and to comply with Policies T6 and 
BE1 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan." 
 
4. The applicant is seeking a variation of condition to allow for parking/sales within an enlarged 
area in front of the existing railing.  This would allow for vehicle sales/parking on an additional area 
approximately 5.5m deep and almost the width of the site, but excluding the access roads.  An 
area of verge in excess of 7m would be retained in front of this additional sales/parking area, 
reducing to approximately 5m to the rear of the bus stop,  The applicant has suggested a revised 
condition to allow this increased sales area, whilst keeping the remainder of the currently restricted 
area free of vehicles.  The applicant has confirmed that they would be prepared to erect new 
boundary treatment to the extended area and alter the surfacing materials. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K.15962 (01/00188/FULL) - change of use from petrol filling station to car sales and workshop - 
permitted 22.05.02 
 
16/00483/FULL - change of use from office to cafe (Class A3) - permitted 31.01.217 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP46  Pollution Control 
 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 4 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
Consultations 
  
 Local Highway Authority No objection. Recommend amended 

condition limiting extent of sales/display 
area. 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter of objection 
Issues raised: 
- Highway safety with vehicles obstructing visibility 
 
1 letter of observation 
Issues raised: 
- the land the subject of the application highway verge or outside of the applicants lease and 

therefore not in their control 
- the car sales have used this verge before usually at weekends. The cars are removed no doubt 

because they are in breach of planning and their lease condition 
- if consent is granted cars will undoubtedly be parked outside the hatched line as they are on 

occasions 
- GBC do not have the manpower to enforce planning conditions  
- when the verge is wet cars will cause damage to the verge. It will look unsightly. Will they keep it 

in good condition? 
- the existing cars for sale can be seen from the road. 
- if granted consent the visual amenity will be destroyed 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The applicant has completed Certificate A to confirm that they are the owners of the land. We do 
not have any evidence to dispute this, nor has the Highway Authority indicated that this land is 
adopted highway. Where complaints are received regarding a possible breach of a planning 
condition the matter could be investigated to see if any formal action is required. The main issues 
in this case are, therefore, whether the variation of the condition to increase the sales area would 
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area, on the amenities of the 
adjoining occupiers, or on highway safety. 
 
2. At the time when the original planning permission was granted, there were grass verges and 
large trees extending from the entrance to Fareham Reach, to the north, to Lederle Lane to the 
south, with the area in front of this site comprising grass verge. There has been a significant 
amount of change since that planning permission, with the redevelopment of 154 Fareham Road to 
the south and the construction and approval of two drive-thrus, comprising a restaurant and coffee 
shop, and additional parking, which has reduced the size of the previous verge significantly.  
Similarly the construction of the timber merchant building and its yard, to the north, along with the 
siting of the 2.4m high security fence has also reduced the verge substantially. This would be 
altered further, if the road widening scheme on the north side of Wych Lane is undertaken. Given 
this change in character it is considered that there is some scope on this site to extend its car sales 
area towards Fareham Road.  
 
3. The applicant's proposals include the retention of an area of grass verge, in front of the car sales 
area, which essentially lines up with the verge in front of the fencing of the timber merchant to the 
north, and the fence surrounding the vacant site of the approved coffee shop drive thru to the south 
of Barwell Lane.  It is considered that the retention of a reduced verge of the size proposed would 
not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the area, given the more recent changes on 
the neighbouring sites.  The applicants have provided a plan to show the new limitation of the car 
sales and a revised condition preventing this hatched area being used for parking, storage or 
display is considered necessary to maintain the character and appearance.  Additionally, in order 
to prevent encroachment of vehicles onto the retained verge it is considered necessary to install 
new boundary treatment, or re-position the existing railing to the revised boundary line, the details 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 5 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

of which will be secured by condition.  Given the existing surface is grass there is potential for this 
to be damaged with the movement of vehicles, which could result in a detrimental appearance of 
the land, and a condition requiring details of the proposed hard surfacing is also considered 
necessary.  Given this is a variation of condition application, it is also necessary to re-impose and 
update the relevant conditions from the original planning permission. Subject to these conditions 
the proposals are considered to be in accordance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029.   
 
4. The proposals relate to an existing use and, given the separation distances to the adjoining 
occupiers, with the closest residential properties on the opposite side of Fareham Road, the 
additional car sales area would not have a detrimental impact on the amenities of those occupiers, 
in accordance with Policies LP10 and LP46.   
 
5.  The car sales area, as proposed would be set back sufficient distance, and similar to that to the 
north, to ensure that good visibility for vehicles leaving the site is maintained.  The Local Highway 
Authority has commented on the application and has not raised any specific concerns regarding 
highway safety, or any impact on a road widening scheme, which is understood to only affect land 
on the north side of Wych Lane. Given this, the proposals are considered to be in accordance with 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
1.  a) Hard surfacing shall be installed to the extended sales area, hereby approved, prior to the 
first use of that area and in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved, in writing, 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The approved hard surfacing shall be retained thereafter.  
Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 2.  a) Prior to the first use of the extended sales area hereby approved, a boundary treatment shall 
be installed between the points 'A-A', 'B-B' and 'C-C' on the approved plan in accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The approved boundary treatment shall be retained thereafter.  
Reason - In the interests of visual amenity and to comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The vehicle access and manoeuvring areas, hatched green on the approved plan 
260601/061201/A of planning permission K.15962, shall be kept clear and available at all times. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and visual amenity, and to comply with Policies LP23 
and LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
 4.  No motor vehicle, boat, trailer or caravan may be parked, stored or displayed for sale within the 
area hatched black on the approved plan MLP/02 and this area shall be kept clear at all times. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and visual amenity, and to comply with Policies LP23 
and LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  The Fareham Road northern access shall be used for the purposes of 'Entry Only' and signage 
approved under planning permission K.15962, shall be retained for this purpose. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 6.  The Fareham Road southern egress shall be used for the purposes of 'Exit Only' and signage 
approved under planning permission K.15962, shall be retained for this purpose. 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 6 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to comply with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  The areas shown on the approved plan 260601/061201/A of planning permission K.15962 for 
the parking of staff and customer vehicles shall be retained for those purposes at all times. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate car parking is provided and 
retained, and to comply with Policies LP10 and LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029. 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 7 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 02.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00290/FULL  
APPLICANT: Toob Toob Ltd   
DATE REGISTERED: 25.05.2021 

 
INSTALLATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE TO OPERATE GIGABIT FIBRE NETWORK, 
INCLUDING ERECTION OF FREESTANDING CABIN, 3M HIGH FENCING AND GATES 
AND CREATION OF NEW VEHICULAR ACCESS (DEPARTURE FROM LOCAL PLAN) 
(as amplified by information received 01.06.21, 30.06.21 and 02.07.21 and amended by 
plans received 30.06.21 and 01.07.21) 
Land At HMS Sultan   Grange Road  Gosport  PO12 3BY     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the east side of Grange Road and within the HMS Sultan playing field. It 
comprises part of a triangular shape area of open grass within the fenced off field, belonging to the 
military establishment. The surrounding area comprises principally the playing fields and adjacent 
tennis courts.  The tennis courts are surrounded by an existing chain link fence, approximately 3m 
high, which bounds two sides of the triangular area of land, with the third side being 2m high chain 
link fencing to Grange Road.  Directly adjacent to the site is an existing Oak tree, which is situated 
adjacent to the Grange Road boundary.  Beyond the tennis courts to the north, is the existing 
shared footway cycleway linking Grange Road and Military Road, beyond which is the secure 
military base HMS Sultan.  On the opposite side of Grange Road is the Waste and Recycling 
facility and BMX track, forming part of the wider Alver Valley Country Park. The closest residential 
properties are in excess of 150m to the northwest, with additional accommodation within HMS 
Sultan to the north. The site lies outside of the Urban Area Boundary, being situated within the 
Settlement Gap and is also existing Open Space, as defined by the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029.  The remainder of the Sultan field, excluding this site and Tennis Courts, is designated 
as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC). 
 
2. The proposals are for the installation of a new broadband facility. The applicant indicates that 
the proposed development will allow full fibre (to the premises) access across the entire Gosport 
urban area (some 46,000 premises including residential and business/commercial). They also 
indicate that it is estimated that Gosport currently only has around 1% coverage of gigabit full fibre 
internet (to the premises) and the proposals will increase coverage to over 60% (projected 
estimate) by 2024. 
 
3. The proposals include the provision of a new access onto Grange Road, revised to a dropped 
kerb, rather than bell mouth arrangement. A compound is proposed, which would be 18m deep 
and 8m wide, surrounded by a 3m high green wire mesh fence, with 6m wide gates to provide 
access from Grange Road.  Amended plans have been received to remove a privacy screen from 
the fence to provide a more open appearance. The compound would run parallel with the tennis 
court fencing and be set back 4.3m from Grange Road.  Within the compound would be a gravel 
area for contractor vehicle parking and a freestanding cabin. The cabin would be 5m deep, 3.7m 
wide and 3m high. The cabin would be sited a minimum of 1.4m from the compound boundaries. 
Other associated infrastructure such as air handling units and cabinets would be attached to the 
external elevations of the cabin.  The applicant has provided additional information to clarify the 
choice of location for the proposals and some of its associated impacts. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
13/00555/FULL - installation of 4 no. synthetic sports pitches together with erection of 4m high 
fencing - permitted 07.02.14 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 8 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP20  Information and Communication Technology 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP35  Protection of Existing Open Space 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP43  Locally Designated Nature Conservation Sites 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Consultations 
  
 Economic Development & Regeneration Support this application given that it relates 

to the installation of infrastructure to operate 
a gigabit fibre network across the Gosport 
peninsula. 
 
Ensuring that businesses, residents, 
students, employees and visitors have the 
ability to access the highest quality 
telecommunications networks is essential to 
the recovery in the short term of Gosport's 
economy and its sustainable growth in the 
medium to long term.   
 
Both the Council's Economic Development 
Strategy 2021-31 and the Solent Local 
Enterprise Partnership's Gosport 
Infrastructure Investment Plan (2019) 
highlight the importance of 
telecommunications to the town's economy.  
 
With regards to the Gosport Infrastructure 
Investment Plan, it sees rolling out the next 
generation telecommunications networks as 
one of the five overarching investment 
priorities, with the scope to benefit the whole 
borough. It will make a high contribution to 
the overarching vision by: 
 
"Providing fast and reliable digital 
connectivity to reinforce Gosport's 
attractiveness as a business location - 
particularly within knowledge and service 
based sectors where growth is required to 
diversify Gosport's existing business base." 
 
It is also seen as critical in developing 'Digital 
Peninsula' concept to help attract businesses 
and people to Gosport. Its importance is 
further reinforced by the pursuit of "early 
investment in full fibre/Gigabit broadband as 
a catalyst for growth and improving public 
service delivery" being a stated priority for 
the near term and ongoing for the Gosport 
Infrastructure Investment Plan.  
 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 9 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

In addition to being a local and regional 
priority it is also a national priority. Last 
summer the Department for Digital, Culture, 
Media and Sport and Ministry of Housing 
Communities and Local Government jointly 
wrote to local authorities to highlight the 
Government's commitment to supporting the 
deployment of gigabit broadband across the 
country. As part of this communication it was 
also highlighted that local authorities play a 
critical role in delivering gigabit broadband 
thereby helping to ensure that "every home 
and business in the UK can access gigabit 
broadband services as soon as possible." 
 
In relation to proposed location for the 
building works associated with this 
application it is essential for it to be as 
central as possible to ensure that the 
network coverage across Gosport is 
maximised. If it is too far north on the 
peninsula then this will impact on the 
potential to connect the key development 
sites and existing business/resident 
populations at the southern end of the 
borough e.g. those on the Haslar peninsula.  
 

  
 Local Highway Authority No objection.  The applicant has provided 

clarification, in terms of the access 
arrangements. Sufficient plans and visibility 
splays have been provided. The applicant 
should be aware that a subsequent 
agreement will need to be granted by HCC 
as Highway Authority to undertake the works 
on the Highway 

  
 Environmental Health No objection. 
  
 Streetscene Parks & Horticulture No objection. No trees appear to be at threat 

from the proposed installation of 
infrastructure to operate Gigabit Fibre 
Network, including erection of freestanding 
cabin, 3m high fencing and gates and 
creation of new vehicular access. The 
proposed tree works to crown lift and reduce 
lateral spread by 1m would not have a 
detrimental impact on tree health or life 
expectancy and would be considered good 
management 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
Nil 
 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 10 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues in this instance are whether the site is appropriate for this form of development 
having regard to its location outside of the Urban Area Boundary and its Open Space designation, 
whether it would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area, on the 
amenity of neighbouring occupiers, highways safety or biodiversity interests. 
 
2. Given the proposals relate to communication infrastructure, Policy LP20 is of relevance. The site 
is located within the designated Strategic Gap and an area of existing Open Space so Policies LP3 
and LP35 are of particular relevance.  Policy LP20(1) indicates that the Borough Council will work 
with relevant partners to support advances in Information and Communication Technologies (ICT).  
The supporting text to the policy also acknowledges that ICT is commonly recognised as the most 
significant driver of economic, social and cultural change. It also indicates a number of the 
associated benefits and that it is essential for existing and new businesses in Gosport to have 
access to the latest technologies, and that the Council will work with providers and other partners 
to facilitate the provision of technology within the Borough. Clearly given the nature of the 
proposals the development would offer significant benefits to the Borough's residents and 
businesses through this ICT provision, as acknowledged by the comments of the Head of 
Economic Development and Regeneration. The proposals would, therefore, be in compliance with 
Policy LP20 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, subject to meeting the other criteria 
relating to its associated impacts.  
 
3. Policy LP3 (9) indicates that "Areas outside of the urban area will be safeguarded from 
development unless they are for appropriate recreational uses or development essential to the 
operational requirements of public and other essential services". It is, therefore, clear that 
exceptions will be made for locating development such as that proposed outside of the urban area, 
within the Gap, being an essential service outlined under Policy LP20. The supporting text for the 
policy indicates that each application should be supported with justification demonstrating that 
there are no alternative sites within the urban area. In this instance, the applicant has provided 
some justification for the location and discounted sites within and near to the Borough (totalling 77 
sites), however, not all of these are likely to be within the Urban Area Boundary, or necessarily 
meet their locational requirements.  Full details of the reasons the individual sites have been 
discounted have not been set out, with no response from landlord, or technical reasons being the 
main justification. The applicant has, however, indicated a number of the technical requirements for 
a site to be considered suitable, with geographical location, as noted above, being a significant 
factor.  The other key factors include, space requirements and unrestricted vehicle access; 
positioned away from residential properties; mains power access; planning and other constraints; 
hazards such as pylons, airports, petrol stations, fuel storage depots are to be avoided; 
neighbouring usage and legacy use of the site; flood risk; free from existing services; and longevity 
of tenure. The applicant has clarified that the location of this site meets the optimum requirements 
in terms of technical, network, optical distance limitations, and to help maximise coverage for the 
widest number of premises in Gosport and Lee-on-Solent areas. They have confirmed that due to 
the number of properties within Gosport, only one site such as that proposed is required. They 
have also confirmed that the specific location proposed on HMS Sultan land was the only location 
that the landlord was able to accommodate the installation due to access and security concerns 
being a secure military base. Having regard to these technical requirements and constraints, in 
particular the geographical position of the site to ensure optimal coverage, on balance, it is 
considered that they have looked at alternative sites within the urban area in order to comply with 
the Policy requirements. Whilst there would be a preference to locate the proposals outside of the 
Gap and within the Urban Area Boundary, having regard to the apparent lack of appropriate sites 
elsewhere, the fact that there is hard surfacing and fencing on the adjacent areas, and the 
relatively modest size of the cabin building itself, given the significant benefits of the proposals in 
terms of essential service, through ICT provision, as supported by Policy LP20 acknowledged in 
the comments of the Head of Economic Development and Regeneration, the proposals, are on 
balance considered acceptable.  
 
4. Policy LP3 also designates this site as Strategic Gap, as shown on the Proposals Map, however, 
the Policy text concentrates on the gaps between Gosport/Fareham and Lee-on-the-



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 11 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

Solent/Stubbington, indicating they will be preserved.  The supporting text to the Policy 
acknowledges that The Alver Valley represents the main area of separation between Gosport and 
Lee-on-the-Solent and indicates that it is the main focus as a Regeneration Area for Green 
Infrastructure. In this instance, given the small size of the site and the low profile of the building 
and fencing, the proposals would not result in any coalescence of the settlements of Gosport and 
Lee-on-the-Solent, nor would they affect the function or green infrastructure of the Alver Valley 
Country Park, on the opposite side of Grange Road.  The proposals do not fully accord with the 
aims and objectives of Policy LP3 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, however, having 
regard to other Policies in the Local Plan in particular Policy LP20 the proposals are, on balance, 
considered acceptable in this instance. 
 
5. Policy LP35 relates to the retention of the existing Open space and indicates that   "development 
proposals will not be granted planning permission on existing open space as identified on the 
Policies Map except where: 
a) The redevelopment of a part of the site for recreation and/or community facilities would retain 
and enhance the existing facilities; or 
b) Alternative provision is made available of equivalent or greater community benefit in terms of 
quality, quantity and accessibility and that the proposed site cannot be used for an alternative form 
of open space for which there is an identified need." 
 
6. The proposals do not provide for any development within point a) and no equivalent open space 
provision is indicated in this instance, however, there are clearly other economic and social 
benefits of this development, as set out above.  In this instance the land contributes to the open 
space visually, however, given its position within the triangular piece of land largely separated from 
the remainder of the field, it does not form part of the functional playing space. In terms of the 
amount of open space being lost, this open space is primarily an open field, with the exception of 
the tennis courts and changing rooms/facilities towards the northwest corner and a parking area in 
the northeast corner. The overall open space, including these other facilities is approximately 
96,000 square metres in area.  The proposals, therefore, make up an area of approximately 160 
square metres, being less than 0.2% of the total area of this open space. Given the small area of 
land being lost it would be difficult for the applicant to comply with criterion b) of the Policy and in 
this instance, given the significant other benefits from the proposals, noted above, on balance a 
minor exception to Policy LP35 is considered acceptable in this instance. 
 
7. The planning permission granted in 2013, under reference 13/00555/FULL, to replace the tennis 
courts with synthetic sports pitches included the erection of 4m high fencing.  This fencing was 
approved to be sports rebound fencing which is of a much narrower bar width than the existing 
chain-link fencing, with 50mm horizontal gaps between the bars.  Whilst not implemented this is a 
material consideration given that the removal of the more open chain-link fence and its 
replacement with a narrower spaced mesh, has previously been accepted in visual terms. The 
originally proposed privacy screens have been removed from the proposals to provide a slightly 
more open aspect. Whilst there would inevitably be a visual impact from the proposals, it is not 
situated within the most open part of the site, being surrounded by existing fencing, and given the 
previous acceptance of higher fencing, of a similar design to that proposed, it is not considered that 
this would be significantly harmful to the appearance of the area, or given the nature of this 
infrastructure proposal result in coalescence of settlements, with the open views across the open 
space largely retained. The proposals are, therefore, considered to be in accordance with Policies 
LP3 and LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 in this regard. 
 
8. Given the separation distance to the closest residential properties, including the accommodation 
within HMS Sultan, it is not considered that the small scale nature of the proposals would have a 
detrimental impact on the amenities of those occupiers, in accordance with policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
9. The application has been amended to take into consideration the comments of the Local 
Highway Authority regarding the access onto Grange Road. This will now be a simple dropped 
kerb arrangement and visibility spays are also identified on what is a long straight road, and these 
would be secured by planning condition.  It is not anticipated that the proposals would generate 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 12 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

significant vehicle trips and overall the facility and access, subject to conditions would not have a 
detrimental impact on highway safety, in accordance with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029.   
 
10. The proposals are for a small facility located in a more discrete location of grass, in the 
northeast corner of the wider open space and outside of the designated SINC.  Whilst any impacts 
on protected species are of importance, given the small scale of the proposals, in this context, the 
fact that it is on an area of mown grass and having regard to the sites position, it is not considered 
that the resultant activity and noise levels indicated from the equipment in this open area, next to a 
busy road, would have a detrimental impact on protected species, or other biodiversity interests in 
accordance with Policies LP42 and LP43 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.  The 
proposals are situated adjacent to an unprotected tree, however, it is not considered that the 
development would result in a harmful impact on the tree in this instance, in accordance with Policy 
LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 
A21-336-P-003 REV F; A21-336-P-004 REV F; A21-336-P-005 REV G ; A21-336-P-008 REV F; 
A21-336-P-700;  A21-336-P-006 REV B; A21-336-P-007 REV B 
 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The facility hereby approved shall not be brought into use until the verge crossing, and visibility 
splays shown on the approved plans have been constructed and provided. The approved access 
and visibility splays shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety, and to comply with Policy LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 13 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 03.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00294/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Antony Quinn   
DATE REGISTERED: 07.06.2021 

 
RETENTION OF AND FURTHER WORKS FOR THE ERECTION OF REAR DORMER 
WINDOW (CONSERVATION AREA) (as amplified by letter dated 29.06.21 and plans 
received 01.07.21) 
20 Atkinson Close  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2BZ     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the southern side of Atkinson Close opposite its junction with Clayhall 
Road.  It comprises a detached house with an open plan front garden and enclosed rear garden.  
The house is primarily constructed of red brick with a tiled roof and barn hips.  There are a 
projecting gable and porch on the front elevation with render and Tudor style timber detailing. 
There is a detached double garage within the front garden adjacent to its eastern boundary, with a 
driveway in front.  There is a conservatory on the rear elevation close to the western boundary. 
The site is located within the Anglesey Conservation Area. 
 
2. The surrounding area comprises a mix of property designs, built at a similar time.  Numbers 18 
and 19 are detached houses situated to the east and have their rear elevations and gardens facing 
onto the side elevation of the application site and its garage. Number 21 is located to the west and 
is a detached house with a gabled roof. On its front elevation it has a projection forming a double 
garage with a cat slide roof over, incorporating two pitched roof dormer windows.  To the rear of 
the site are terraced properties fronting Anglesey Arms Road, with approximately 22.5m between 
opposing elevations. Some of these properties have extensions/conservatories on the rear 
elevations. Within the terrace is an undercroft leading to a garage/parking area to the rear of 
numbers 44-50, which adjoins the rear boundary of the application property. 
 
3. The application relates to the retention and further works in respect of a dormer window on the 
rear elevation of the property.  The works have commenced, and the external frame of the 
structure is largely complete, however, those works are currently on hold pending the outcome of 
this application. The dormer itself has a flat roof and is set off the side elevations by approximately 
1.4m and would be 7.1m wide, essentially spanning the width of the main part of the roof, with the 
barn hips retained. It would be set down from the ridge by approximately 0.2m and up from the 
eaves by a similar distance, when measured vertically, or approximately 0.35 when measured 
along the roof slope. It is indicated as being tile hung in a colour to match, although these works 
are yet to be undertaken. Three rooflights are proposed on the front elevation, however, these can 
be undertaken without planning permission. The applicant has provided a letter and photos 
highlighting the relationships between the existing windows and those proposed, images of other 
dormers within the Conservation Area.  Additional plans have been provided to clarify the resultant 
relationship of the dormer to the existing property. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K14879/1 - erection of conservatory - permitted 11.12.02 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP10  Design 
 LP12  Designated Heritage Assets: Conservation Areas 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 
 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 14 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a Conservation Area.  Section 72 of The Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 
1990 (as amended) requires that the authority pay: "special attention to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a conservation area". 
 
Consultations 
  
 The Gosport Society Object. The design of the new dormer as 

constructed contravenes GBC Design 
Guidance, contravenes Permitted 
Development Class B, is not in keeping with 
the character of the host building and harms 
the character of the housing estate and of 
the Conservation Area. 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
5 letters of objection  
Issues raised: 
- excessive size and totally out of keeping with the surrounding properties and is not appropriate in 

a Conservation Area 
- loss of privacy 
- works have already commenced, possibly as a 'fait acompli' 
- impact on property values 
 
3 letters of support 
Issues raised: 
- the design and finishes are fully in keeping with the house and surrounding homes. It has been 

designed with careful and sympathetic consideration of any effect on neighbouring properties  
- as the dormer is at the rear of the property it will have minimal impact on the appearance of the 

surrounding area 
- the building works I can see from my house and garden which I feel is in no way obtrusive 
- it has been planned sympathetically and will maintain the local features in keeping with other 

dormers in the Anglesey Conservation Area 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The existing property comprises 4 bedrooms and the proposals would not generate a 
requirement for additional parking to accord with the Parking Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD). Each application must be considered on its own merits and the fact that works have 
commenced should not be a consideration as to the acceptability, or otherwise of a development. 
The impact on property value is not a material planning consideration and cannot be given any 
weight in the determination of this planning application. The main issues for consideration are, 
therefore, whether on completion the development would preserve, or enhance the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area, whether it is an appropriate addition to the existing house, 
or would have a detrimental impact on the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. 
 
2. The site is located within the Anglesey Conservation Area and notwithstanding the age of the 
property, built after the Conservation Area was designated, any development must, at minimum, 
preserve the character and appearance of this designated area. The dormer on the rear roof slope, 
despite the separation to the side elevations of the roof slope still appears as a visually obtrusive, 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 15 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

unsympathetic and incongruous addition to the recipient property in terms of the additional bulk 
introduced at roof level. Its scale dominates the roof slope and fails to be a subservient addition, 
which is not considered to be an acceptable design solution, irrespective of its location within the 
Conservation Area. Whilst its location, surrounded by other properties means that it is not highly 
visible from wider public vantage points, glimpses are still possible and it is clearly visible from the 
neighbouring houses.  A more discrete location is not a reason in itself to approve otherwise 
unacceptable development. Whilst rooflights could be added without planning permission, given 
the property's location within the Conservation Area any roof enlargement, such as that within this 
application, would require planning permission, so there is no fall-back position in terms of a 
physical enlargement in this instance. Each application must be considered on its merits and the 
existence of other dormer windows within the wider Conservation Area, which are in a different 
context, or incomparable to this, are not considered to justify this proposal.  Overall it is considered 
that the works are for a disproportionately large addition to the rear of the roof, which would not 
respect the appearance of the property or preserve the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area, contrary to Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029 and the Design SPD.   
 
3. There is approximately 22.5m between the two-storey rear elevation of the application property 
and the two-storey rear elevations of the houses within Anglesey Arms Road.  There is mutual 
overlooking between the application site, its neighbour number 21, the rear elevations of numbers 
17 and 18, whose rear elevations face west towards the application site and the properties within 
Anglesey Arms Road, all of which have first floor windows. The Design SPD provides guidance on 
separation distances, for this circumstance, of 21m between opposing two-storey elevations 
increasing to 28m for three-storeys.  The resultant relationship from this development would fall 
below this guidance, however, of relevance is the fall-back position that rooflights could be installed 
within a third floor of accommodation, without the need for planning permission and the degree of 
mutual overlooking that currently exists between most of these properties.  Whilst it is considered 
that there would be an increased opportunity for overlooking and perceived loss of privacy to the 
rear in particular, given the fall-back that would result in a similar opportunity for overlooking and 
the fact that there is some mutual overlooking already it is not considered, on balance, that this 
impact would not be sufficiently harmful to the amenities of the neighbours, from loss of privacy, to 
refuse the application on these grounds. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse 
 
For the following reason(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The dormer, by reason of its excessive scale, bulk and unsympathetic relationship with the 
recipient property appears as an incongruous and visually discordant feature which does not 
respect the character and appearance of the property, or preserve the character and appearance 
of the Anglesey Conservation Area, contrary to Policies LP10 and LP12 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Design SPD. 





Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 17 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 04.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00093/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Christopher Willis  Gosport & Fareham Multi Academy Trust 
DATE REGISTERED: 26.02.2021 

 
ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY COMMUNITY BUILDING. (as supplemented by plans 
and information submitted  11 March 2021, 30 March 2021 and 23 June 2021) 
Brune Park Community School  Military Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3BU   

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application site is located to the western side of Military Road and is within the Brune Park 
School Campus. The site is currently a hard surfaced area in the southern part of the school 
adjacent to the junction of Henry Cort Way and Military Road. 
  
2. The area surrounding the site is school campus to the north, a mix of MoD land with dwellings 
(no's 25 to 35 Military Road) to the south and allotments and highway to the east. The nearest 
residential dwellings are to the opposite side of Henry Cort Way and are  separated from the site 
by 22 metres at their closest point.  The MoD land comprises the northern eastern boundary of Fort 
Rowner, a Grade II Listed Building within HMS Sultan. 
 
3. This application seeks permission for the erection of single storey community building. The 
building is proposed to provide a Community Services Hub with a particular emphasis upon 
support for families of serving military personnel.  The facility is proposed to support the delivery of 
peer mentoring, parental support groups, a 'Keep Connected' community cafe which will house 
facilities and capacity to contact family members away on deployment and offer our large Service 
family community a significant support network, hosted by two employees working within the role 
as Service Families Coordinator and who will work closely with local Naval bases to do this. The 
community hub will be used by the community to engage in parent workshops and opportunities to 
meet and discuss with professionals from multi-agencies.  The proposed building would measure 
15.9 metres in width 12.2 metres in depth and would have a 1.6 metre wide ramped access to the 
main entrance to the eastern elevation. The shallow pitched roofed buildings would have a height 
of 3.7 metres, an eaves height of 3.2 metres, with the ridge having a north south orientation. 
 
4. The building would have a total floor space of 186 square metres comprised of a 115 square 
metre community space, a kitchenette, 2 meeting rooms, toilet facilities and storage spaces. 
 
5. The applicant has provided amended plans and information relating to existing and proposed 
vehicle parking provision at the site. 
 
6. This application has been brought before the Regulatory Board for decision as the applicant (an 
employee of the Academy Trust) as shown on the application form has been appointed as an 
Independent Person by the Council. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
Nil. 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP32  Community, Cultural and Built Leisure Facilities 
 LP39  Water Resources 
 LP40  Waste and Material Resources 
 LP41  Green Infrastructure 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 18 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Consultations 
  
 HCC Landscape Planning & Heritage No response received. 

 
  
 Streetscene Parks & Horticulture No objection. 

Agree with submitted Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment and tree protection measures 
provided and note that no trees have been 
identified for removal or pruning in relation to 
this proposal 
 

  
 Environmental Health No objection subject to condition and 

informative regarding actions to be 
undertaken if contaminated land is 
discovered on site. 

 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter in support of the application. 
Issues raised: 
- The benefit to the pupils, children and community of Gosport is vitally important, not only with the 

return, to normality, hopefully, post COVID lockdowns but to the long term future of the Gosport 
community. 

 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issue for consideration is the impact of the proposed building upon the character and 
appearance of the area, the amenities of neighbours, any impact upon parking or highway safety in 
the vicinity of the site, the impacts of any land contamination at the site and the impact of the 
proposal on the nature conservation interests of the site and the surrounding area. 
 
2. The application site falls within the Urban Area Boundary within which Policy LP3 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan (GBLP) 2011-2029 permits a presumption of development, as long as 
proposals accord with other national and local plan policies. The site is also allocated as an 
existing community use, which is protected under Policies LP3 and LP32 of the Local Plan. Policy 
LP32 provides detailed guidance on community uses, including Point 3 which supports the 
development of new community uses provided that:  
a) they have good pedestrian and cycle access;  
b) there is good access to public transport services, particularly for facilities serving the whole 
Borough;  
c) they are well-designed; and  
d) they have the potential to be used as a multi-use facility.  
 
3. The floorplans of the unit show several meeting rooms and a large community space. The 
development therefore has the potential to be a multi-use facility, as envisaged under Point 3d of 
Policy LP32. 
 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 19 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

4. The proposed community/education development would not be considered a main town centre 
use under Point 2 of Policy LP32 and as such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with 
this Policy. 
 
5. The proposed development would occupy a prominent location on a corner plot prominent in 
views down both Station Road and Military Road, and as such high-quality design is of importance. 
It is also noted that the structure will be shielded by some degree by the surrounding vegetation. 
While the proposed structure is fairly utilitarian in its design and form, it also benefits from attractive 
features such as external timber panelling and large areas of glazing.  It is therefore considered 
that the proposal is in keeping with the aesthetic of the surrounding school buildings and that both 
Policy LP10 and Point 3c of Policy LP32 are therefore satisfied. 
 
6. The site is within 50m of the Grade II listed structure of Fort Rowner. Policy LP10 requires 
developments to respect the character of the Borough's heritage assets and their setting. The 
single-storey nature of this development and the screening from the on-site vegetation will 
ameliorate any heritage harm from this development. As such the proposal is considered to comply 
with Policy LP10 in this regard. 
 
7. The application was submitted with a Tree Protection Plan due to the location of a number of 
prominent mature trees of amenity value within the area surrounding the site.  No trees are to be 
trimmed, prunes or removed as part of the proposal and the Streetscene Team has confirmed that 
it is satisfied that the measures detailed within the Tree Protection Plan are sufficient to safeguard 
the trees.  A condition securing adherence to the Tree Protection measures set out in the Tree 
Protection Plan is considered to be reasonable and necessary and is recommended to be 
imposed.  The proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan in 
this and as such is considered to be acceptable in this regard. 
 
8.  Due to its single storey scale and minimum separation from neighbouring dwellings of 22 
metres the proposal is considered not to impact detrimentally upon the amenities of neighbours. As 
such it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan. 
 
9. The Environmental Health Service have recommended both a condition and an informative 
which detail actions to be taken should contaminated land be encountered during the construction 
phase of the proposal. Both are considered to be reasonable and necessary and as which are 
recommended to be imposed and added for the applicant's information. The proposal is therefore 
considered to be in compliance with Policy LP47 of the Local Plan. 
 
10. Primary access to the proposed facility would be via an existing pedestrian gate fronting onto 
Military Road. The site is also adjacent to one of the Borough's main cycle routes along Henry Cort 
Way, so would satisfy Point 3a of Policy LP32 in providing good pedestrian and cycle access. 
 
11. The proposed development would include the provision of 20 spaces to serve the development. 
The dimensions and layout of these spaces is in accordance with the guidance set out in the 
Parking SPD and as such is considered to be acceptable.  It is noted that at the time of the 
Officer's site visits the area of the land where the proposal building would be sited is currently used 
for the parking of vehicles associated with the existing school use of the wider site. The proposed 
use of the proposal as a community building is considered to be analogous with the Adopted 
Parking SPD (Table 7 - Leisure Facilities and Places of Public Assembly (Church Hall)) which sets 
out the required levels for both cars and cycles at 1 parking space per 10 square metres of open 
hall space, one long stay cycle parking space per 40 square metres and one short stay cycle 
parking space per 10 square metres.  The proposed community building will have an open hall of 
115 square metres and an overall floor space of 186 square metres.  This equates to a 
requirement for 12 vehicle parking spaces, 5 long stay cycle spaces and 19 short stay cycle 
spaces. 
 
12. The level of parking upon the site as existing has been observed to be variable with a minimum 
of 6 vehicles parked on the application site and a maximum of 24.  The applicant has provided a 
site plan that illustrates an area of vehicle parking within the central part of the school site that is 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 20 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

currently not used for the parking of vehicles, that would be used to accommodate those vehicles 
displaced by the proposed building and its associated parking.  The area of land is located 
immediately to the south east of the main school building and is of sufficient width and depth to 
accommodate the parking of 18 vehicles.  If the parking of 24 vehicles on the application site is 
considered to be the worst case scenario then 18 of these would be accommodated in the parking 
to the south east of the main school buildings and there would be sufficient spare capacity within 
the parking provided at the application site to accommodate remaining 6 vehicles without leading 
to undue pressure for parking outside the school site, in the wider highway network. 
 
13. As such it is considered that the proposal provides sufficient vehicle parking to accommodate 
both the proposed community use and the existing school use.  It is noted that the proposed cycle 
parking does not meet with the adopted standard in terms of the number of cycle spaces provided 
(12 are proposed, and 5 long stay and 19 short stay are required), however it is considered that 
sufficient space exists within the site to make the requisite provision.  Therefore is it is considered 
both reasonable and necessary to recommend a condition that requires the submission and 
approval of details of 19 short stay and 5 long stay cycle parking spaces at the application site prior 
to its first occupation.   
 
14. It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with the guidance 
set out in the councils parking SPD, is in accordance with Policy LP23 of the Local Plan and is 
acceptable in this regard. 
 
15. It is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policies LP3 and LP32 of 
the local plan and as such the principle of the proposed development is considered to be 
acceptable.  The design of the proposed building is considered to be acceptable and the proposed 
development is not considered to have a detrimental impact in terms of the streetscene, local 
character or in terms of the setting or character of nearby heritage assets. It is also considered that 
the proposed development would not impact detrimentally upon the amenities of neighbours and 
as such the proposal is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with Policy LP10 of the 
Local Plan in this regard.  A condition is recommended regarding proper investigation and, if 
necessary mitigation of ground contamination and as such the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable and in accordance with Policy LP47 of the Local Plan.  It is considered that sufficient 
parking to serve the needs of the proposed community hall and those of the wider education facility 
are provided within the proposed development and that a suitably worded condition will secure 
sufficient cycle parking.  As such it is considered that the proposal would be in compliance with 
Policy LP23 of the Local Plan. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted.  
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans:  
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-102 P1   PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN   
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-103 P1   PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 1 OF 2 SOUTH 
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-104 P1   PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 2 OF 2 NORTH 
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-105 P1   PROPOSED GA SERVICES PLAN 
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-106 P1   PROPOSED ROOF PLAN   
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-101 P3   PROPOSED SITE PLAN 
2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-100 P2   EXISTING LOCATION AND BLOCK PLAN 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 21 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture those specified in Section 5 of 
the Application forms and drawings PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 1 OF 2 SOUTH,  2028-MEB-XX-
00-DR-A-3-104 P1 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 2 OF 2 NORTH, unless otherwise agreed, in 
writing, with the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  a) Development shall cease on site if, during any stage of the works, unexpected ground 
conditions or materials which suggest potential contamination are encountered, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
b) Works shall not recommence before an investigation and risk assessment of the identified 
material/ground conditions has been undertaken and details of the findings along with a detailed 
remedial scheme, if required, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
c) The remediation scheme shall be fully implemented and shall be validated in writing by an 
independent competent person as agreed with the LPA prior to the occupation of the unit.  
Reason - To prevent harms to workers, occupiers or customers of the site arising from 
contaminated land in accordance with Policy LP47 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  a) The development, hereby permitted, must not be occupied or brought in to use until 
provision has been made on site for the parking of vehicles in accordance with the approved 
details   on drawing No. 2028-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-100 P2. 
b) The vehicular parking shall thereafter be retained.  
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision for the parking of vehicles is provided in accordance 
with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Gosport Borough Council SPD 
Parking 2014 and the NPPF. 
 
 6.  a) The development, hereby permitted, must not be  occupied or brought into use until details 
of 5 long stay cycle parking spaces and 19 short stay cycle parking spaces to serve the proposed 
development have been provided in accordance with details that shall have been submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. b) The cycle parking facilities shall thereafter 
be retained.  
Reason - To ensure that adequate provision for the parking of cycles is provided in accordance 
with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, the Gosport Borough Council SPD 
Parking 2014 and the NPPF. 
 
 7.  The development hereby approved shall proceed on site in strict accordance with the details 
set out in the Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Impact Assessment submitted in support of 
the application. 
Reason:  To ensure that the amenity and welfare of prominent adjacent trees is protected, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 





Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 23 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 05.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00269/VOC  
APPLICANT: Mr Christopher Willis  Gosport & Fareham Multi Academy Trust 
DATE REGISTERED: 14.05.2021 

 
VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 (APPROVED PLANS) FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
ADDITIONAL WINDOWS OF PLANNING PERMISSION 21/00092/FULL - DEMOLITION 
OF FIVE CLASSROOMS IN SOUTH-WEST CORNER OF THE SITE AND ERECTION OF 
SINGLE STOREY REPLACEMENT BUILDING WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING TO 
PROVIDE TEACHING SPACE AND MARINE & MARITIME CAREERS CENTRE (as 
amended by plans received 30.03.2021) 
Bay House School  Gomer Lane  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2QP   

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. This application relates to Bay House School and 6th Form [herein referred to as the school], a 
large secondary school for years 7 to 13 including provision of 6th form learning for 16-18 year 
olds, with over 2,300 pupils. The school is located on the southern side of Gomer Lane, with 
Stokes Bay Mobile Home Park to the west, a four storey block of flats to the north and The 
Seahorse Public House and detached housing to the north-east. To the east of the school is 
Stanley Park, a green space with dense tree cover and to the south of the site are playing fields. 
 
2. The overall school site is substantial in terms of its size (0.99ha) and there a number of Grade II 
Listed Buildings located on the school premises, notably: the Lodge, Gates and Boundary Wall of 
Bay House School on the northern side of the site and the former mansion of Bay House School 
built in 1832 as Ashburton House at the southern end of the site. To the south-west of the school is 
the locally listed Gosport Lines from Battery No.2. A gate at the south-western part of the site leads 
to a footway connecting to Battery No.2 East Car Park and the grassed fields on the northern side 
of Stokes Bay Road.  
 
3. The school site is largely comprised of a number of rectangular plan form buildings between one 
to two stories high running generally north to south. 
 
4. Planning permission was granted in April 2021 for the demolition of five classrooms in the south-
west corner of the site and the erection of a single storey replacement building with associated 
landscaping to provide a teaching space and marine and maritime careers centre. The five existing 
'temporary' classrooms are second hand stock from Hampshire County Council and have been on 
the school site for approximately 35 years.   
 
5. The gross internal area (GIA) of the five current classrooms amount to 667.3m2 that would be 
increased to 952.1m2 GIA through the permitted scheme (an increase of 284.8m2 GIA). The 
permitted building would be orientated in an asymmetric 'T-shape' broadly on the footprint of the 
existing classrooms.  
 
6. The western elevation of the permitted building (facing towards the mobile home park) would be 
some 46.8m in length, 4m to the highest part of the pitched roof and 3.1m to the lowest part of the 
roof. Roof lights would be installed on the pitched roof element. Each classroom would have its 
own door. Classroom windows and doors would be installed on the western elevation but there 
would be a distance of some 25m from these windows with the boundary to the west. Projecting 
from the west elevation by 18m would be a flat roof section of building that would have a sedum 
green roof, at some 4m to the eaves. On the western part of this building, doors and windows, a 
change from the previous permission, would be installed and from the edge of the projection to the 
boundary of the school would be a distance separation of approximately 5m. The eastern elevation 
would be similar in appearance to the west elevation. On the proposed south and northern 
elevations of the building, windows of a similar size and appearance to those on the western 
elevation would be installed with additional access doors. In terms of materials, the building would 
be finished in a mixture of vertical timber cladding, off-white/white rendered walls and feature 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 24 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

rendered panels, with UPVC windows, aluminium and steel doors and plastisol coated steel 
fascias/soffits. 
 
7. Internally, the two marine classrooms would occupy the western part of the building. A proposed 
4m2 plant room would be located on the eastern side of the building, some 46.5m distant from the 
nearest residential properties. Toilet facilities would be located centrally in the block. A distance 
separation of some 2m with the retained building to the east would be retained.  
 
8. There are no trees on the site that are protected by a preservation order (TPO) and the 
submitted tree protection plan indicates one tree (T2, beech) would be felled to facilitate the works. 
 
9. This application seeks permission for the following changes to the permitted scheme:- 
- the removal of one window from the East facing elevation; 
- the removal of two windows from the South facing elevation and the spacing of the remaining 
windows revised to match the north elevation; and,  
- the installation of two windows on the West facing elevation.  
 
10. This application has been brought before the Regulatory Board for decision as the applicant 
(an employee of the Academy Trust) as shown on the application form has been appointed as an 
Independent Person  by the Council. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
21/00092/FULL - demolish five classrooms in the south-west corner of the site and erect a single 
storey replacement building with associated landscaping to provide a teaching space and marine 
and maritime careers centre - permitted 15.04.2021 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP2  Infrastructure 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP11  Designated Heritage Assets including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

and Registered Historic Parks & Gardens 
 LP13  Locally Important Heritage Assets 
 LP17  Skills 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP32  Community, Cultural and Built Leisure Facilities 
 LP41  Green Infrastructure 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP43  Locally Designated Nature Conservation Sites 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 
 LP45  Flood Risk and Coastal Erosion 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Hampshire County Council Developers Contributions towards Children's Services Facilities 

December 2013 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019 
 
Particular obligations fall upon the Local Planning Authority in determining any application which 
might affect a listed building or its setting or a Conservation Area. Section 66 of The Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990 (as amended) places a duty on the authority to have 



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 25 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

"special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses". 
 
Consultations 
  
 HCC Ecology No objection. 
  
 The Gosport Society No objection. 
  
 Building Control No objection. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
Nil 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The principle of development, the impact on the setting of the building on the Listed Building and 
locally listed Gosport Lines and the parking implications have been fully assessed and were 
considered acceptable under permission 21/00092/FULL. The main issues here are whether: the 
design of the proposed changes to the permitted scheme is acceptable and whether there would 
be a significant impact on amenity.  
 
2. Since the previous application was granted, the applicant has discharged condition three 
(materials) of planning permission 21/00092/FULL. The proposed materials are included on 
drawing 00-0200 REV 05 - GA Elevations and the Council's Conservation Consultant has 
considered the submitted details and indicates they would be acceptable. Subject to an updated 
condition, the proposed materials would preserve the setting of the Listed Building and for similar 
reasons the setting of the locally listed Gosport Lines from Battery No.2, in accordance with 
Policies LP11 and LP13 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029.  
 
3. Given the potential for extra-curricular activities associated with the proposal, the increase in 
windows facing Stokes Bay Mobile Home Park to the west and the wider function of the site there 
is potential for some degree of harm to neighbours arising from the proposed building/use. 
However, it is noted that the western elevation of the building would be 25m east of the nearest 
neighbours at single storey level only and the operating hours are not considered to be 
unreasonable. The additional windows would not therefore have a harmful impact on the occupiers 
of Stokes Bay Mobile Home Park.   
 
4. In conclusion, the installation of additional windows and the proposed finishing materials are 
considered to be acceptable in design terms and to the setting of heritage assets and this scheme 
would not have a significant impact on residential amenity. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun before 15th April 2024.  
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
00-0200 Rev 05 - GA Elevations  
2027-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-100 P2 - Existing Location and Block Plan  



Regulatory Board:  21st July 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-VW-13.07.21 Page 26 of 26 DC/UNI-form Template 

2027-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-102 P2 - Proposed Floor Plan  
2027-MEB-XX-00-DR-A-3-106 P3 - Proposed Site Plan  
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement, prepared by Scott Tree Services LTD 
(dated 12.02.2021) 
Tree Protection Plan (dated 12.02.2021) 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details shown on plan 00-0200 
REV 05 - GA Elevations.  
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policies LP10 and LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until 
i) a detailed landscaping scheme (to include all hard surfaces and planting) that shall have been 
submitted to approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority; and 
ii) the approved hard landscaping approved pursuant to part a)i) of this condition has been 
completed. 
b) The approved planting scheme shall be implemented within the next planting season following 
first occupation of the development. 
c) Any trees or plants which die are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased during the 
first five years, shall be replaced with others of identical species (or as may otherwise be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority) during the next planting season. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area, and to comply with Policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  a) Development shall not commence until the tree protection measures set out in Tree 
Protection Plan (dated 12.02.2021) and Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement, 
prepared by Scott Tree Services LTD (dated 12.02.2021); have been provided. 
b) The tree protection measures shall be retained until the development is substantially complete, 
or its removal is agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure the important trees on the site are safeguarded and protected during 
development in accordance with Policies LP10 and LP41 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 
2011-2029. 
 



13
3

9

33
5

21

13

Regents

9.4m11

W
YCH L

ANE

El Sub Sta

14 B
A

R
W

E
L

L
 L

A
N

E

8.5m

16

El Sub Sta

Gas Gov

Gas Gov

145

7

25

LB

9.1m

9

6

34
7

18

1

Shelter

FAREHAM ROAD

Trade Park

8.8m

155

9.4m

10

361

3

17

1

36
3

9.1m

32

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



7

12

F
A

W
N

 C
L

O
S

E

S
ultan

Household Waste Recycling Centre

11.6m

B
L

A
N

C
H

A
R

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

17

1 to 19

31

6.7m

Pavilion

17

4

G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

17

FS

ALDER LANE

6.1m

12.8m

Ely Court

1

Cycle Track

6.4m

2

A
N

S
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

5

Rifle

ESS

7

Range

1

Culdrose House

Prestwick

G
R

A
N

G
E

 R
O

A
D

2

Pump

A
m

el
ia

 G
a

rd
en

s

1a

Shelter

11

C
ycle Track

32

1

12

Court

1

9

D
ra

in

1

8

Alder Moor

7

9

10

18

16

16

ESS

15

1

Tennis Courts

2

LIZARD CLOSE

10

10

LB

El Sub Sta

Tennis

JERSEY WAY 2

C
R

E
D

 &
 W

a
rd

 B
d

y

Sports Field

C
R

1 to 29

Play Area

5.8m

10

BMX Track

House

5

2

1

Tennis Court

Fort Grange

2

18

11

El Sub Sta

A
LD

E
R

 LA
N

E

1

C
R

H
ou

se

24

2 FANFARE CLOSE

8

Shelter

33

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:2500Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



ESS

22

Stone

62

ROAD

4.9m

SOMERVELL

14

9

35

14

51

4

42

14

16

2

M
er

to
n

ANGLESEY ARMS ROAD

Pond

11

El Sub Sta

Cottage

Ps

C
L

O
S

E

4b

19

Stone

8

41

ST 
M

A
RK

'S
 R

O
AD

10

CLOSE

50

SOMERVELL

4

36

Fort

17

15

19

55

15

40

47

12

17

4

10

Hotel

(Nursing and Retirement Home)

Alverstoke House

2

65

3

1

6

ATKINSON

Brodrick

64

Stone

H
o

u
se

C
L

O
S

E

6

24

6a

2

12

38

22

33

Memorial Hall

Sewage Ppg Sta

19

66

1

CRESCENT ESS

8

58

CLAYHALL ROAD

63

19

10

29

53

20

LB

4

21

7

49

5

30

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Mast

Brockhurst (Allot Gdns)8.2m

C
ycle W

ay

11

25

35

M
IL

IT
A

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

S
tation

 H
ouse

Pond

Brune Park
ESS

15

6.4m

DW

7.0m

Gantry

(Telecommunication)

7.9m

Community College

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank



1

7

Post

83

12

68

1 to
 8

Shelter

29
CLOSE

1 to 12

G
ro

yn
e

14 to 17

Court

1 to 12

SANDOWN

Stanley Park

19

Shirrel

4.0m

1 
to

 8

3

The

22

14

Car Park

Seahorse

1

11

to

Seaview Court

Cottage

5.2m

GOMER LANE

Ps

The

7

Court

School

G
ro

y
n

e

Mobile Home Park

91

4

Cadnam

Promenade

Ps

Shelters

21

14 to 17

6

1 to 12
3.7m

90

(PH)

25

99

9

Last House

Posts

12

4.3m

Ashurst

27

2

7

8

ESS

Bay House

Marchwood

The

TOWER CLOSE

Stokes Bay

Court

3.4m

ESS

Court

Fair Oak Court

1

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:2000Gosport Borough Council



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021
	Minutes

	6 Fareham Local Plan 2037: Revised Publication Plan (Regulation 19)
	7 Report of the Development Manager
	Item 1 - Fleetland Car Sales, Fareham Road
	Item 2 - HMS Sultan
	Item 3 - 20 Atkinson Close
	Item 4 - Brune Park
	Item 5 - Bay House


